
 

Page 1 of 4 
 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682 

(530) 677-2231 Phone 
  (530) 677-2201 Fax 

www.cameronpark.org 

 
AGENDA 

 

Regular Board of Directors Meetings are held 
Third Wednesday of the Month 

 

 
BOARD MEETING 

Wednesday, August 17, 2022 
 6:30 p.m. 

(updated 8/16/2022 to correct resolution numbers on agenda) 

 
Hybrid Meeting Link for Teams 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-
join/19%3ameeting_ZDYwNTNjNjEtNzg1Ny00NGFiLTgzNTYtOTFjNjFmM

DZiZDJh%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-
2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b510e640-

8ba3-421f-a075-694cad7ace01%22%7d  
 

Board Members 
Felicity Carlson 

Sidney Bazett  
Eric Aiston 

Monique Scobey 
Ellie Wooten 

 

President 
Vice President 
Board Member 
Board Member 
Board Member 
 

 
 

 
 
 

  

http://www.cameronpark.org/
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_ZDYwNTNjNjEtNzg1Ny00NGFiLTgzNTYtOTFjNjFmMDZiZDJh%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b510e640-8ba3-421f-a075-694cad7ace01%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_ZDYwNTNjNjEtNzg1Ny00NGFiLTgzNTYtOTFjNjFmMDZiZDJh%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b510e640-8ba3-421f-a075-694cad7ace01%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_ZDYwNTNjNjEtNzg1Ny00NGFiLTgzNTYtOTFjNjFmMDZiZDJh%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b510e640-8ba3-421f-a075-694cad7ace01%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_ZDYwNTNjNjEtNzg1Ny00NGFiLTgzNTYtOTFjNjFmMDZiZDJh%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b510e640-8ba3-421f-a075-694cad7ace01%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_ZDYwNTNjNjEtNzg1Ny00NGFiLTgzNTYtOTFjNjFmMDZiZDJh%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b510e640-8ba3-421f-a075-694cad7ace01%22%7d


                                                                                               
   AGENDA 

 

 

Board of Directors Agenda  Page 2 of 4 
Regular Meeting August 17, 2022 
 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
1. Roll Call  
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

 
Public testimony will be received on each agenda item as it is called. Principal party on each side of an issue is 
allocated 10 minutes to speak, individual comments are limited to 3 minutes except with the consent of the Board; 
individuals shall be allowed to speak on an item only once. Members of the audience are asked to volunteer their 
name before addressing the Board. The Board reserves the right to waive said rules by a majority vote. 
 

 
ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA  
The Board will make any necessary additions, deletions, or corrections to the Agenda and motion to adopt the Agenda. 
 

3. Adopt the Agenda 
    

 
RECOGNITIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
Board of Directors expresses appreciation to members of the community, District staff, or the Board for extra efforts as 
volunteers, committee members or community-minded citizens.  
 

 
OPEN FORUM FOR NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
Members of the public may speak on any item not on the agenda that falls within the jurisdiction of the Board of 
Directors. 
   

 
APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 
The following Consent Agenda items are considered routine and will be acted upon by the Board without 
discussion with one vote. Any item may be removed from the Consent Agenda by a Board member or a member 
of the audience and placed under General Business #12 to be discussed and acted upon individually. 
 

4. APPROVE Conformed Agenda – Board of Directors May 18, 2022 
5. APPROVE Conformed Agenda – Board of Directors Special Meeting May 18, 2022 
6. APPROVE Conformed Agenda – Board of Directors Special Meeting May 25, 2022 
7. APPROVE Conformed Agenda – Board of Directors June 15, 2022 
8. APPROVE Conformed Agenda – Board of Directors Special Meeting June 22, 2022 
9. APPROVE Conformed Agenda – Board of Directors Special Meeting July 6, 2022 

10. RECEIVE AND FILE General Manager’s Report 
11. APPROVE - Resolution No. 2022-28 Hybrid Meetings 

12. APPROVE - Resolution 2022-24 Building Department Memorandum of Understanding (D. Martin)  



                                                                                               
   AGENDA 

 

 

Board of Directors Agenda  Page 3 of 4 
Regular Meeting August 17, 2022 
 

13. APPROVE – Resolution 2022-25 Updated Advanced Life Support JPA Agreement (D. Martin)  
14. APPROVE – Resolution 2022-22 Addendum to the Agreement for Mutual Aid Fire Protection (D. 

Martin) 
 

 
GENERAL BUSINESS   
For purposes of the Brown Act §54954.2 (a), items below provide a brief description of each item of business 
to be transacted or discussed. Recommendations of the staff, as shown, do not prevent the Board from taking 
other action. 

15. Items removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion 
16. PUBLIC HEARING – ADOPT Ordinance 2022-01 and APPROVE Resolution 2022-23 Second reading of 

First Responder Fee Ordinance (A. Pichly, D. Martin)  
17. APPROVE- Resolution 2022-26  Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Final Budget 
18. APPROVE- Resolution 2022-27 Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Special Funds Budget  

 
 
 
BOARD INFORMATION ITEMS 
At this time, the Board and staff are provided the opportunity to speak on various issues. Direction by the President may 
be given; however, no action may be taken unless the Board agrees to include the matter on a subsequent agenda.   

 
19. Committee Chair Report-Outs 

a. Budget & Administration   
b. Covenants, Conditions & Restrictions (CC&R)   
c. Fire & Emergency Services 
d. Parks & Recreation 

20. General Matters to/from Board Members and Staff 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
At this time, members of the public may speak on any closed session agenda item. Closed sessions may be called as 
necessary for personnel, litigation, and labor relations or to meet the negotiator prior to the purchase, sale, exchange, 
or lease of real property. Members of the public may address the Board prior to closing the meeting.   
 
 
CONVENE TO CLOSED SESSION 
The Board will recess to closed session to discuss the following item(s): NONE 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT 



                                                                                               
   AGENDA 

 

 

Board of Directors Agenda  Page 4 of 4 
Regular Meeting August 17, 2022 
 

 
 

Please contact the District office at (530) 677-2231 or admin@cameronpark.org if you require public 
documents in alternate formats or accommodation during public meetings. For the public’s information, we 

are taking email requests at admin@cameronpark.org for future notification of  
Cameron Park Community Services District meetings. 

 
 
 

mailto:admin@cameronpark.org
mailto:admin@cameronpark.org


 

Page 1 of 4 
 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682 

(530) 677-2231 Phone 
  (530) 677-2201 Fax 

www.cameronpark.org 

A G E N D A  
 

Regular Board of Directors Meetings are held 
Third Wednesday of the Month 

 

 
BOARD MEETING 

Wednesday, May 18, 2022 
 6:30 p.m. 
 

Cameron Park Community Center – Social Room 
2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682 

 

CONFORMED AGENDA 
 

Board Members 
Felicity Carlson 

Sidney Bazett  
Eric Aiston 

Monique Scobey 
Ellie Wooten 

 

President 
Vice President 
Board Member 
Board Member 
Board Member 

 
 

  

http://www.cameronpark.org/


                                                                                               
   AGENDA 

 

 

Board of Directors Agenda  Page 2 of 4 
Regular Meeting May 18, 2022 
 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER 6:37 pm 
1. Roll Call - FC/SB/EA/MS – present; EW – absent (meeting opened concurrently with special board 

meeting) 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
 
Public testimony will be received on each agenda item as it is called. Principal party on each side of an issue is 
allocated 10 minutes to speak, individual comments are limited to 3 minutes except with the consent of the Board; 
individuals shall be allowed to speak on an item only once. Members of the audience are asked to volunteer their 
name before addressing the Board. The Board reserves the right to waive said rules by a majority vote. 
 

 
ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA  
The Board will make any necessary additions, deletions, or corrections to the Agenda and motion to adopt the Agenda. 
 

3. Adopt the Agenda 
  Motion –SB / 2nd - MS  
  Ayes – FC/SB/EA/MS – Motion passed 
  Noes – None 
  Absent – EW 
  Abstain - None 

    
 

RECOGNITIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
Board of Directors expresses appreciation to members of the community, District staff, or the Board for extra efforts as 
volunteers, committee members or community-minded citizens.  
 

4. El Dorado Disposal  –  Organics and Rates presentation (J. England and R. Reaksecker) 
 
MEETING STOPPED AT 7:35 PM DUE TO TECHNICAL ISSUES INVOLING THE VIRTUAL 
PLATFORM BEING USED.  Jason S. Epperson, General Counsel to the District, stated that the 
meeting could not proceed further under current California law because the technical issues 
could not be resolved to allow full observance and participation by those attending 
remotely.  Director Wood Carlson requested a motion be made to adjourn the regular 
meeting. 

Motion –SB / 2nd - EA  
  Ayes – FC/SB/EA/MS – Motion passed 
  Noes – None 
  Absent – EW 
  Abstain - None 

 
 

OPEN FORUM FOR NON-AGENDA ITEMS 



                                                                                               
   AGENDA 

 

 

Board of Directors Agenda  Page 3 of 4 
Regular Meeting May 18, 2022 
 

Members of the public may speak on any item not on the agenda that falls within the jurisdiction of the Board of 
Directors. 
   

 
APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 
The following Consent Agenda items are considered routine and will be acted upon by the Board without 
discussion with one vote. Any item may be removed from the Consent Agenda by a Board member or a member 
of the audience and placed under General Business #11 to be discussed and acted upon individually. 
 

5. APPROVE Conformed Agenda – Board of Directors Special Meeting April 20, 2022 
6. RECEIVE AND FILE General Manager’s Report 
7. RECEIVE AND FILE 2022 Work Plan Update 
8. RATIFY Resolution 2022-09 to Approve Addendum to 2021-2024 Memorandum of Understanding 

between Cameron Park Community Services District and Cameron Park Community Services District 
Employee Association 

9. APPROVE Resolution No. 2022-06 Hybrid Meetings 
10. RECEIVE AND FILE 3rd Quarter FY 21/22 Budget to Actuals 

 
 
GENERAL BUSINESS   
For purposes of the Brown Act §54954.2 (a), items below provide a brief description of each item of business 
to be transacted or discussed. Recommendations of the staff, as shown, do not prevent the Board from taking 
other action. 

11. Items removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion 
12. DISCUSS AND APPROVE Resolution 2022-10 El Dorado Disposal Annual Fee Adjustment 
13. RECEIVE AND APPROVE FY 2020-2021 Audit 

 
 
 
BOARD INFORMATION ITEMS 
At this time, the Board and staff are provided the opportunity to speak on various issues. Direction by the President may 
be given; however, no action may be taken unless the Board agrees to include the matter on a subsequent agenda.   

 
14. Committee Chair Report-Outs 

a. Budget & Administration   
b. Covenants, Conditions & Restrictions (CC&R)   
c. Fire & Emergency Services 
d. Parks & Recreation 

15. General Matters to/from Board Members and Staff 



                                                                                               
   AGENDA 

 

 

Board of Directors Agenda  Page 4 of 4 
Regular Meeting May 18, 2022 
 

• Upcoming Trainings & Community Meetings 
 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
At this time, members of the public may speak on any closed session agenda item. Closed sessions may be called as 
necessary for personnel, litigation, and labor relations or to meet the negotiator prior to the purchase, sale, exchange, 
or lease of real property. Members of the public may address the Board prior to closing the meeting.   
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
Please contact the District office at (530) 677-2231 or admin@cameronpark.org if you require public 

documents in alternate formats or accommodation during public meetings. For the public’s information, we 
are taking email requests at admin@cameronpark.org for future notification of  

Cameron Park Community Services District meetings. 
 

 
Conformed Agenda Prepared by:   Conformed Agenda Approved by: 
 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
André Pichly      Director Felicity Wood Carlson, President 
Board Secretary      Board of Directors 

mailto:admin@cameronpark.org
mailto:admin@cameronpark.org


 

Page 1 of 2 
 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682 

(530) 677-2231 Phone 
   (530) 677-2201 Fax 

www.cameronpark.org 
 
 
 

CONFORMED AGENDA 
 

Regular Board of Directors Meetings are held 
Third Wednesday of the Month 

 

 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 
Wednesday, May 18, 2022 

 6:30 p.m. 
 

Board Members 
Felicity Carlson 

Sidney Bazett  
Eric Aiston 

Monique Scobey 
Ellie Wooten 

 

President 
Vice President 
Board Member 
Board Member 
Board Member 
 

 
 

 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 6:37 PM  

1. Roll Call - FC/SB/EA/MS – present; EW – absent (meeting opened concurrently with regular board 
meeting) 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Public testimony will be received on each agenda item as it is called. Principal party on each side of an issue is 
allocated 10 minutes to speak, individual comments are limited to 3 minutes except with the consent of the Board; 
individuals shall be allowed to speak on an item only once. Members of the audience are asked to volunteer their 
name before addressing the Board. The Board reserves the right to waive said rules by a majority vote. 
 

 

http://www.cameronpark.org/


                                                                                               
   AGENDA 

 

 

Board of Directors Special Meeting Conformed Agenda  Page 2 of 2 
 May 18, 2022 
 

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA  
The Board will make any necessary additions, deletions, or corrections to the Agenda and motion to adopt the Agenda. 
 

3. Adopt the Agenda  
 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 
Public comment during special meetings is limited to those items agendized on the Special Meeting Agenda.  Speakers 
wishing to speak will have three minutes. 
   
 
CONVENE TO CLOSED SESSION 
The Board will recess to closed session to discuss the following item(s): 

Conference with Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation 
• Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code section 54956.9(b): Three (3) 

potential cases. 
Jason P. Epperson reported out that the Board discussed in closed session the items agendized for 
closed session discussion and direction was given to staff.  The Board took no other reportable action. 
 

 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
  

 
Please contact the District office at (530) 677-2231 or admin@cameronpark.org if you require public 

documents in alternate formats or accommodation during public meetings. For the public’s information, we 
are taking email requests at admin@cameronpark.org for future notification of  

Cameron Park Community Services District meetings. 
 

 
Conformed Agenda Prepared by:   Conformed Agenda Approved by: 
 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
André Pichly      Sidney Bazett, Vice President 
Board Secretary      Board of Directors 
 

mailto:admin@cameronpark.org
mailto:admin@cameronpark.org


 

Page 1 of 5 
 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682 

(530) 677-2231 Phone 
   (530) 677-2201 Fax 

www.cameronpark.org 
 

 

AGENDA 
 

Regular Board of Directors Meetings are held 
Third Wednesday of the Month 

 

 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 
Wednesday, June 22, 2022 

 6:30 p.m. 
 

Board Members 
Felicity Carlson 

Sidney Bazett  
Eric Aiston 

Monique Scobey 
Ellie Wooten 

President 
Vice President 
Board Member 
Board Member 
Board Member 
 

Conformed Agenda 
 
CALL TO ORDER  – 6:33 pm 

1. Roll Call – SB / EA / MS – present; FWC / EW absent 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Public testimony will be received on each agenda item as it is called. Principal party on each side of an issue is 
allocated 10 minutes to speak, individual comments are limited to 3 minutes except with the consent of the Board; 
individuals shall be allowed to speak on an item only once. Members of the audience are asked to volunteer their 
name before addressing the Board. The Board reserves the right to waive said rules by a majority vote. 
 

 
ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA  
The Board will make any necessary additions, deletions, or corrections to the Agenda and motion to adopt the Agenda. 
 

http://www.cameronpark.org/


                                                                                               
   AGENDA 

 

 

Board of Directors Special Meeting Conformed Agenda  Page 2 of 5 
 June 22, 2022 
 

3. Adopt the Agenda  
Motion to adopt the Agenda: 
  MS/EA – Motion passed 
  Ayes –SB/EA/MS 
  Noes – None 
  Absent – FWC/EW 
  Abstain - None 

 
 

OPEN FORUM FOR NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
Members of the public may speak on any item not on the agenda that falls within the jurisdiction of the Board of 
Directors. 

   
APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 
The following Consent Agenda items are considered routine and will be acted upon by the Board without 
discussion with one vote. Any item may be removed from the Consent Agenda by a Board member or a member 
of the audience and placed under General Business #5 to be discussed and acted upon individually. 
 

4. APPROVE Resolution No. 2022-13 Hybrid Meetings 
 
GENERAL BUSINESS   
For purposes of the Brown Act §54954.2 (a), items below provide a brief description of each item of business 
to be transacted or discussed. Recommendations of the staff, as shown, do not prevent the Board from taking 
other action. 

5. Items removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion 
Motion to approve the consent agenda: 
  MS/EA – Motion passed 
  Ayes –SB/EA/MS 
  Noes – None 
  Absent – FWC/EW 
  Abstain - None 

6. PUBLIC HEARING - APPROVE Resolution 2022-14 to Exercise Board of Director’s Statutory Authority 
to Abate Rubbish and Weeds and Collect Costs on Properties on Which Said Rubbish and Weeds 
Constitute a Public Nuisance (K. Richards) 

• MS asked about if oak trees are included in abatement – Chief Richards clarified that contractors are 
aware of the stipulations regarding diameter of trees that cannot be abated (6-inch) unless the tree is 
dead or downed. 

• Two residents spoke during the Public Hearing.  
• Motion to approve Resolution 2022-14 with the staff making sure to communicate in a timely manner, 

15-30 days, a letter for demand for weed abatement costs for all fees so that the property owners have 
the opportunity to pay the fees and not pay the preparation for lien documents: 
  MS/EA – Motion passed 
  Ayes –SB/EA/MS 



                                                                                               
   AGENDA 

 

 

Board of Directors Special Meeting Conformed Agenda  Page 3 of 5 
 June 22, 2022 
 

  Noes – None 
  Absent – FWC/EW 
  Abstain - None 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – APPROVE Resolution 2022-15 Establishing Appropriations Limitation for Fiscal 
Year 2022-2023 for the Cameron Park Community Services District.  (C. Greek) 
• Public Hearing opened and closed without comment. 
Motion to approve Resolution 2022-15 Establishing Appropriations Limitation for Fiscal Year 2022-
2023 for the Cameron Park Community Services District.   

MS/EA – Motion passed 
  Ayes –SB/EA/MS 
  Noes – None 
  Absent – FWC/EW 
  Abstain - None 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – APPROVE Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Preliminary Budget 
• Public Hearing opened. 
• EA requests that staff look into the grievance process with SDRMA regarding the insurance 

premium increase and that staff look into other insurance coverage options for  
• EA asked about the percentage – 10% fixed cost out of what we anticipate getting from 

property taxes.   Do we want to continue with a fixed percentage or is it more appropriate to 
list the costs regardless of what the percentage is? 

• EA would like to know why paying off a fire truck early to save paying on the interest for the 
loan would be opposed by the auditing firm; rational for not paying it off early vs. building up 
reserve 

• EA – regarding the Summer Spectacular - ask that a special fund be created or that it be shown 
in the budget and displayed as a funded event – do not prefer a special fund 

• EA – wristband sales – needs to show estimated sales in budget; need to show budget for 
fireworks 

• EA – wants staff to figure out the cost of pool operations vs. income that the CSD is seeing from 
usage.  Need to communicate the value of having swim teams to help cover overall operational 
costs if that’s in fact the situation. 

• EA – would like to see staff come back with a zero-balanced budget and here’s how we do that 
so staff can make an educated decision.  MS – agreed and referenced policy for having a 
balanced budget.  BS also agreed with the goal being a balanced budget. 

• MS – would like to see staff figure out how to fund reserves other than Fire 
• MS – asked about updating our fee schedule and would like staff to bring this back for Board 

review. 
• EA – discussed fixed costs – the things we have to do – and how costs are increasing, says it 

doesn’t make sense to have a deficit in fixed costs.  Believes some hard discussions may need to 
take place to successfully address this issue.  

Motion to approve the preliminary budget made by EA.  MS asked for a friendly amendment directing 
to staff to bring back a balanced budget and placing the Summer Spectacular in its own fun.  EA 
amended his motion to approve the 2022/23 preliminary budgets with direction to staff to bring back 
in the final budget in August a balanced budget or at least the implications of a balanced budget 
should the Board decide to that and to create a special fund for Summer Spectacular for the budget 



                                                                                               
   AGENDA 

 

 

Board of Directors Special Meeting Conformed Agenda  Page 4 of 5 
 June 22, 2022 
 

year and to get a sense what it costs.   SB withdrew his motion on the original motion and 2nds the 
amended motion.  
  Ayes –SB/EA/MS 
  Noes – None 
  Absent – FWC/EW 
  Abstain – None 
 
SB called for a 5-minute recess at 9:53 pm. 
 

9. APPROVE Resolution 2022-16 declaring the Intention to Continue Assessments for the Fiscal Year 
2022-2023, Preliminarily Approving Engineer’s Report, and Providing for Notice of Public Hearing for 
the Landscaping and Lighting Districts.  
• Public Hearing opened. 
• Would like to see interest revenue used from current year actuals 
• EA noted that LLAD 50 doesn’t have an agency fees and would like to be sure that all LLAD’s are 

paying their share of the agency fees added to Fund 50 
• The Board of Directors also would like to see the line item for the CCI Grant funding removed 

from the SCI spreadsheet 
• EA is pleased that the LLAD has been cleaned up compared to past years but there’s more work 

to do. 
• In response to question from MS, two different LLAD’s (39-and 50) cannot be combined if they 

were balloted at different times.  Consultant did say that ballot text may indicate some options, 
but the consulting firm will need to look into this further. 

• Public Hearing closed. 
Motion to approve Resolution 2022-16 to schedule a public hearing to approve the final Engineer’s 
LLAD report: 
  MS/EA – Motion passed 
  Ayes –SB/EA/MS 
  Noes – None 
  Absent – FWC/EW 
  Abstain - None 

 
BOARD INFORMATION ITEMS 
At this time, the Board and staff are provided the opportunity to speak on various issues. Direction by the President may 
be given; however, no action may be taken unless the Board agrees to include the matter on a subsequent agenda.   
 

 
ADJOURNMENT    

Motion to approve the consent agenda: 
  MS/EA – Motion passed 
  Ayes –SB/EA/MS 
  Noes – None 
  Absent – FWC/EW 
  Abstain - None 



                                                                                               
   AGENDA 

 

 

Board of Directors Special Meeting Conformed Agenda  Page 5 of 5 
 June 22, 2022 
 

Meeting adjourned at 10:18 pm 
 

 
Please contact the District office at (530) 677-2231 or admin@cameronpark.org if you require public 

documents in alternate formats or accommodation during public meetings. For the public’s information, we 
are taking email requests at admin@cameronpark.org for future notification of  

Cameron Park Community Services District meetings. 
 

 

  
 

 
Conformed Agenda Prepared by:   Conformed Agenda Approved by: 
 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
André Pichly      Director Sidney Bazett, Vice President 
Board Secretary      Board of Directors 

mailto:admin@cameronpark.org
mailto:admin@cameronpark.org


 

Page 1 of 4 
 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682 

(530) 677-2231 Phone 
  (530) 677-2201 Fax 

www.cameronpark.org 

 

CONFORMED AGENDA 
 

Regular Board of Directors Meetings are held 
Third Wednesday of the Month 

 

 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 
Wednesday, May 25, 2022 

 6:30 p.m. 
 

Cameron Park Community Center – Assembly Hall 
2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682 

 
 
 

Board Members 
Felicity Carlson 

Sidney Bazett  
Eric Aiston 

Monique Scobey 
Ellie Wooten 

 

President 
Vice President 
Board Member 
Board Member 
Board Member 

 
 

  

http://www.cameronpark.org/


                                                                                               
   AGENDA 

 

 

Board of Directors Conformed Agenda  Page 2 of 4 
Special Meeting May 25, 2022 
 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER 5:35 pm 
1. Roll Call – FWC/SB/EA/MS present; EW absent 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

 
Public testimony will be received on each agenda item as it is called. Principal party on each side of an issue is 
allocated 10 minutes to speak, individual comments are limited to 3 minutes except with the consent of the Board; 
individuals shall be allowed to speak on an item only once. Members of the audience are asked to volunteer their 
name before addressing the Board. The Board reserves the right to waive said rules by a majority vote. 
 

 
ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA  
The Board will make any necessary additions, deletions, or corrections to the Agenda and motion to adopt the Agenda. 
 

3. Adopt the Agenda 
 
Motion to Adopt the Agenda 
       MS/SB – Motion Passed 
       Ayes – FWC/SB/EA/MS 
       Noes – None 
       Absent – EW 
       Abstain - None 

    
 

RECOGNITIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
Board of Directors expresses appreciation to members of the community, District staff, or the Board for extra efforts as 
volunteers, committee members or community-minded citizens.  
 

 
 

OPEN FORUM FOR NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
Members of the public may speak on any item not on the agenda that falls within the jurisdiction of the Board of 
Directors. 
   

 
APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 
The following Consent Agenda items are considered routine and will be acted upon by the Board without 
discussion with one vote. Any item may be removed from the Consent Agenda by a Board member or a member 
of the audience and placed under General Business #9 to be discussed and acted upon individually. 
 

4. APPROVE Conformed Agenda – Board of Directors Special Meeting April 20, 2022 
5. RECEIVE AND FILE General Manager’s Report 
6. RECEIVE AND FILE 2022 Work Plan Update 



                                                                                               
   AGENDA 

 

 

Board of Directors Conformed Agenda  Page 3 of 4 
Special Meeting May 25, 2022 
 

7. RATIFY Resolution 2022-09 to Approve Addendum to 2021-2024 Memorandum of Understanding 
between Cameron Park Community Services District and Cameron Park Community Services District 
Employee Association 

8. APPROVE Resolution No. 2022-06 Hybrid Meetings 
 
Motion to approve the Consent agenda with item #4 and #8 being pulled for discussion. 
    EA/SB – Motion Passed 
    FWC/SB/EA/MS 
    Noes – None 
    Absent – EW 
    Abstain - None 
 
 

 
GENERAL BUSINESS   
For purposes of the Brown Act §54954.2 (a), items below provide a brief description of each item of business 
to be transacted or discussed. Recommendations of the staff, as shown, do not prevent the Board from taking 
other action. 

9. Items removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion 
10. RECEIVE AND FILE 3rd Quarter FY 21/22 Budget to Actuals 

• MS and EA discussed the philosophical concept of the development of reserves and whether it 
was based on an industry standard or based on the District intending to do so should the fiscal 
situation allow for it.   

• FWC agreed that an intentional approach was more likely to have a positive outcome. 

• EA recommends we budget for a reserve and make adjustments at the mid-year budget 
discussion. 

11. RECEIVE AND APPROVE FY 2020-2021 Audit 

• EA commented that “no audit findings” is the highest rating the District could receive, which 
is an improvement over past years. 

Motion to approve the 2020-2021 Audit. 
    SB/MS – Motion Passed 
    FWC/SB/EA/MS 
    Noes – None 
    Absent – EW 
    Abstain - None 

 
 
 
 



                                                                                               
   AGENDA 

 

 

Board of Directors Conformed Agenda  Page 4 of 4 
Special Meeting May 25, 2022 
 

BOARD INFORMATION ITEMS 
At this time, the Board and staff are provided the opportunity to speak on various issues. Direction by the President may 
be given; however, no action may be taken unless the Board agrees to include the matter on a subsequent agenda.   

 
12. Committee Chair Report-Outs 

a. Budget & Administration   
b. Covenants, Conditions & Restrictions (CC&R)   
c. Fire & Emergency Services 
d. Parks & Recreation 

13. General Matters to/from Board Members and Staff 
 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
At this time, members of the public may speak on any closed session agenda item. Closed sessions may be called as 
necessary for personnel, litigation, and labor relations or to meet the negotiator prior to the purchase, sale, exchange, 
or lease of real property. Members of the public may address the Board prior to closing the meeting.   
 

ADJOURNMENT - 7:55 pm 
Motion to adjourn 
    SB/EA – Motion Passed 
    FWC/SB/EA/MS 
    Noes – None 
    Absent – EW 
    Abstain - None 

 
 

 
Please contact the District office at (530) 677-2231 or admin@cameronpark.org if you require public 

documents in alternate formats or accommodation during public meetings. For the public’s information, we 
are taking email requests at admin@cameronpark.org for future notification of  

Cameron Park Community Services District meetings. 
 

 
Conformed Agenda Prepared by:   Conformed Agenda Approved by: 
 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
André Pichly      Director Felicity Wood Carlson, President 
Board Secretary      Board of Directors 
 

mailto:admin@cameronpark.org
mailto:admin@cameronpark.org


 

Page 1 of 4 
 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682 

(530) 677-2231 Phone 
  (530) 677-2201 Fax 

www.cameronpark.org 

 

CONFORMED AGENDA 
 

Regular Board of Directors Meetings are held 
Third Wednesday of the Month 

 

 
BOARD MEETING 

Wednesday, June 15, 2022 
 6:30 p.m. 
 

Board Members 
Felicity Carlson 

Sidney Bazett  
Eric Aiston 

Monique Scobey 
Ellie Wooten 

 

President 
Vice President 
Board Member 
Board Member 
Board Member 
 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER 6:34 PM 
1. Roll Call - SB/EA/MS – present; FWC/EW 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

 
Public testimony will be received on each agenda item as it is called. Principal party on each side of an issue is 
allocated 10 minutes to speak, individual comments are limited to 3 minutes except with the consent of the Board; 
individuals shall be allowed to speak on an item only once. Members of the audience are asked to volunteer their 
name before addressing the Board. The Board reserves the right to waive said rules by a majority vote. 
 

 
ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA  
The Board will make any necessary additions, deletions, or corrections to the Agenda and motion to adopt the Agenda. 
 

3. Adopt the Agenda 

http://www.cameronpark.org/


                                                                                               
   AGENDA 

 

 

Board of Directors Conformed Agenda  Page 2 of 4 
Regular Meeting June 15, 2022 
 

Motion to adopt the Agenda: 
  MS/EA – Motion passed 
  Ayes –SB/EA/MS 
  Noes – None 
  Absent – FWC/EW 
  Abstain - None 

 
    

 
RECOGNITIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
Board of Directors expresses appreciation to members of the community, District staff, or the Board for extra efforts as 
volunteers, committee members or community-minded citizens.  
 

4. El Dorado Disposal – Organics and Rates presentation (J. England and R. Reaksecker) 
 

• SB moved to a 5-minutes recess prior to the start of the presentation while slideshow is set-
up 

 
 

OPEN FORUM FOR NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
Members of the public may speak on any item not on the agenda that falls within the jurisdiction of the Board of 
Directors. 
   

 
APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 
The following Consent Agenda items are considered routine and will be acted upon by the Board without 
discussion with one vote. Any item may be removed from the Consent Agenda by a Board member or a member 
of the audience and placed under General Business #7 to be discussed and acted upon individually. 
 

5. RECEIVE AND FILE General Manager’s Report 

6. APPROVE Resolution No. 2022-11 Hybrid Meetings 
Motion to adopt the Consent Agenda: 
  EA/MS – Motion passed 
  Ayes –SB/EA/MS 
  Noes – None 
  Absent – FWC/EW 
  Abstain - None 
 

 
GENERAL BUSINESS   
For purposes of the Brown Act §54954.2 (a), items below provide a brief description of each item of business 
to be transacted or discussed. Recommendations of the staff, as shown, do not prevent the Board from taking 
other action. 



                                                                                               
   AGENDA 

 

 

Board of Directors Conformed Agenda  Page 3 of 4 
Regular Meeting June 15, 2022 
 

7. Items removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion 
8. PUBLIC HEARING - APPROVE Resolution 2022-12 El Dorado Disposal/Waste Connections Annual Fee 

Adjustment 
• MS – inquired about any additional rate options other than what was presented earlier 
• Public Hearing opened and closed. 
• EA commented that the flat fee charged has less to do with the amount generated and simply 

that the service is provided.   
Motion by MS to only approve the CPI and fuel surcharge.  No 2nd and motion dies. Motion by EA to 
approve Resolution 2022-12 as written.  2nd by SB.  
  Ayes –SB/EA 
  Noes – MS 
  Absent – FWC/EW 
  Abstain – None 
Motion fails for lack of a three-fifths vote due to the absence to two board members. 
 
Motion by EA to approve Resolution 2022-12 for the increase in CPI and fuel as outlined the agreement 
and removing the removing the rate increase for SB 1383 to be returned to the Board in a separate 
resolution as soon as possible and no later than next month.  2nd by SB.  
  Ayes –SB/EA/MS 
  Noes – None 
  Absent – FWC/EW 
  Abstain – None 
Motion passes. 
 

 
 
BOARD INFORMATION ITEMS 
At this time, the Board and staff are provided the opportunity to speak on various issues. Direction by the President may 
be given; however, no action may be taken unless the Board agrees to include the matter on a subsequent agenda.   

 
9. Committee Chair Report-Outs 

a. Budget & Administration   
b. Covenants, Conditions & Restrictions (CC&R)   
c. Fire & Emergency Services-Canceled 
d. Parks & Recreation 

10. General Matters to/from Board Members and Staff 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
At this time, members of the public may speak on any closed session agenda item. Closed sessions may be called as 
necessary for personnel, litigation, and labor relations or to meet the negotiator prior to the purchase, sale, exchange, 
or lease of real property. Members of the public may address the Board prior to closing the meeting.   



                                                                                               
   AGENDA 

 

 

Board of Directors Conformed Agenda  Page 4 of 4 
Regular Meeting June 15, 2022 
 

 
 
CONVENE TO CLOSED SESSION 8:57 pm 
The Board will recess to closed session to discuss the following item(s): 

• Conference with Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation 
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code section 54956.9(b) 
One (1) potential case. 

 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 

 
Please contact the District office at (530) 677-2231 or admin@cameronpark.org if you require public 

documents in alternate formats or accommodation during public meetings. For the public’s information, we 
are taking email requests at admin@cameronpark.org for future notification of  

Cameron Park Community Services District meetings. 
 

 
Conformed Agenda Prepared by:   Conformed Agenda Approved by: 
 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
André Pichly      Sidney Bazett, Vice President 
Board Secretary      Board of Directors 
 

mailto:admin@cameronpark.org
mailto:admin@cameronpark.org


 

Page 1 of 3 
 

CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682 

(530) 677-2231 Phone 
   (530) 677-2201 Fax 

www.cameronpark.org 
 

 

CONFORMED AGENDA 
 

Regular Board of Directors Meetings are held 
Third Wednesday of the Month 

 

 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 
Wednesday, July 6, 2022 

 5:15 p.m. 
 

Board Members 
Felicity Carlson 

Sidney Bazett  
Eric Aiston 

Monique Scobey 
Ellie Wooten 

President 
Vice President 
Board Member 
Board Member 
Board Member 
 

Agenda 
 
CALL TO ORDER 5:17 PM   

1. Roll Call - FWC/SB/EA – present; MS/EW 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Public testimony will be received on each agenda item as it is called. Principal party on each side of an issue is 
allocated 10 minutes to speak, individual comments are limited to 3 minutes except with the consent of the Board; 
individuals shall be allowed to speak on an item only once. Members of the audience are asked to volunteer their 
name before addressing the Board. The Board reserves the right to waive said rules by a majority vote. 
 

 
ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA  
The Board will make any necessary additions, deletions, or corrections to the Agenda and motion to adopt the Agenda. 
 

3. Adopt the Agenda  
Motion – SB / 2nd - EA 
  Ayes – FWC/SB/EA – Motion passed 

http://www.cameronpark.org/


                                                                                               
   AGENDA 

 

 

Board of Directors Special Meeting Conformed Agenda  Page 2 of 3 
 July 6, 2022 
 

  Noes – None 
  Absent – EW, MS 
  Abstain - None 

 
 

OPEN FORUM FOR NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
Members of the public may speak on any item not on the agenda that falls within the jurisdiction of the Board of 
Directors. 

   
GENERAL BUSINESS   
For purposes of the Brown Act §54954.2 (a), items below provide a brief description of each item of business 
to be transacted or discussed. Recommendations of the staff, as shown, do not prevent the Board from taking 
other action. 
 

4. APPROVE Resolution 2022-17 Declaring an Election Be Held in its Jurisdiction Consolidation with 
Other Districts Requesting Election Services 
Motion to approve the item by FWC, then withdrawn so another Board member could make a motion 
with the item’s language; Motion by EA to approve Resolution 2022-17 declaring an election be held in 
its jurisdiction consolidating with other districts requesting election services / 2nd - SB 
  Ayes – FWC/SB/EA – Motion passed 

Noes – None 
  Absent – EW, MS 
  Abstain - None 

 
 
BOARD INFORMATION ITEMS 
At this time, the Board and staff are provided the opportunity to speak on various issues. Direction by the President may 
be given; however, no action may be taken unless the Board agrees to include the matter on a subsequent agenda.   
 

 
ADJOURNMENT 5:26 pm 

Motion to adjourn EA / 2nd - SB 
  Ayes – FWC/SB/EA  

Noes – None 
  Absent – EW, MS 
  Abstain - None 

 
 

Please contact the District office at (530) 677-2231 or admin@cameronpark.org if you require public 
documents in alternate formats or accommodation during public meetings. For the public’s information, we 

are taking email requests at admin@cameronpark.org for future notification of  
Cameron Park Community Services District meetings. 

 
 

mailto:admin@cameronpark.org
mailto:admin@cameronpark.org


                                                                                               
   AGENDA 

 

 

Board of Directors Special Meeting Conformed Agenda  Page 3 of 3 
 July 6, 2022 
 

Conformed Agenda Prepared by:   Conformed Agenda Approved by: 
 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
André Pichly      Director Felicity Wood Carlson, President 
Board Secretary      Board of Directors 
 



  

 
 

 Cameron Park 
Community Services District 

 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
DATE:  August 17, 2022 
   
FROM: André Pichly, General Manager  
     
AGENDA ITEM #10: GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
CSD Attorney 
Jason Epperson and I have had a fair amount of communication over the phone, via text 
and email.  I greatly appreciate the counsel Jason provides and believe we have a very 
good working relationship.  
 
Budget and Administration 
Finance/Human Resources Officer Christina Greek has been busy working on the 
budget and we have had several discussions about where to make adjustments in 
pursuit of a balanced budget.   
 
CC&R 
CC&R Officer Jim Mog continues to work diligently on some key issues his office is 
dealing with. In our one-on-one conversations, Jim describes the processes he and Tim, 
his assistant, go through with notifications, as well as follow-up regarding some 
violations that are approaching the pre-legal phase. 
 
Parks and Facilities 
Mike Grassle and I have had discussions about practices that could increase efficiency 
and reduce costs. Mike and I interact several times a day to discuss issues related to 
parks, facilities and the maintenance of District amenities. 
 
Parks and Recreation 
Summer Recreation programming has wound down and it’s been a very successful 
2022.  Camps were full, the pool was very busy, and we have received a lot of positive 
feedback from community members about the quality of our programming and the 
professionalism they experience when interacting with field staff.  Look for events and 
fall programming from Kim and Kayla as we transition into autumn. 



General Manager’s Report August 17, 2022 Page 2 of 2 
 

Fire and Emergency Services 
I’m spending a good amount of time with Chief Martin and am getting to know the Fire 
Department’s leadership team more.  We had a busy July as Dusty and I had several 
items to present to the Fire and Emergency Services Committee. 
 
Other 
I attended the Revenue Development and Management School mid-year planning 
meeting.  Board of Regent members, like myself, come from different places from 
around the County, so mid-ear meetings move to a different city each year.  This year 
the meeting took place in Hollywood, FL.  We had a full day of planning for the 2023 
school and got to spend some time together team building. 

 
 



  

 
 

 Cameron Park 
Community Services District 

 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
DATE:  August 17, 2022 
  
FROM: André Pichly, General Manager 
     
AGENDA ITEM #11: Resolution 2022-28 – Consideration authorizing open 

meetings via teleconference for Cameron Park Board of 
Director and Committee meetings per AB 361 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 2022-28 
 
Background 
Assembly Bill 361, until January 1, 2024, would authorize a local agency to use teleconferencing 
without complying with the teleconferencing requirements imposed by the Ralph M. Brown Act 
when a legislative body of a local agency holds a meeting during a declared state of emergency, 
as that term is defined, when state or local health officials have imposed or recommended 
measures to promote social distancing, during a proclaimed state of emergency held for the 
purpose of determining, by majority vote, whether meeting in person would present imminent 
risks to the health or safety of attendees, and during a proclaimed state of emergency when the 
legislative body has determined that meeting in person would present imminent risks to the 
health or safety of attendees, as provided. 
 
The District Board of Directors have passed resolutions since January that permitted the Board 
and Committees to hold virtual meetings.  While the reasons for holding these virtual meetings 
was due to minimizing the risk of exposure to COVID-19 to all attendees, the current status of 
positive cases and hospitalizations in El Dorado County is very low, according to the El Dorado 
County Health and Human Services COVID-19 interactive dashboard.  
 
Continuing the state’s phased rollback of executive orders implemented in response to the 
pandemic, Governor Gavin Newsom took action to lift all but 5 percent of COVID-19 related 
executive order provisions, while maintaining critical measures that support the state’s ongoing 
response and recovery efforts.  In short, the mask mandate for all California citizens has been 
rolled back and masks are no longer required. 

https://www.edcgov.us/Government/hhsa/covid19/Pages/COVID-19-Dashboard.aspx
https://www.edcgov.us/Government/hhsa/covid19/Pages/COVID-19-Dashboard.aspx


Resolution 2022-28 Transmittal August 17, 2022 Page 2 of 2 
 

Throughout the pandemic, public agencies had to adapt to continue holding public meetings 
while maintaining transparency and complying with the Brown Act.  This was done using virtual 
meetings.  After almost 2-years of using technology that permitted virtual meetings, public 
agencies became more proficient at facilitating meetings that allowed policymakers, staff, and the 
public to participate without being physically present.  Despite some of the minor challenges that 
remain, the use of virtual meeting software has shown that public agencies can still conduct 
business and remain transparent.   
 
Another benefit of the virtual meetings is its convenience for most users.  Whether a Board 
Member, staff, or a member of the public, participation is relatively easy, and can be done just 
about anywhere, as long as the participant has a reliable Wi-Fi signal. Whether a panel member 
or an attendee, virtual meetings have made it easier for most citizens to participate.  That said, 
nothing can replace the experience of meeting face-to-face, but that may not be convenient for 
most individuals.  Allowing a hybrid virtual format for some people may increase participation 
and engagement.  
 
Discussion 
By adopting Resolution 2022-28, the Board of Directors would be able to implement hybrid 
meetings using virtual technology for meetings of the Board, as well as standing and ad hoc 
committees, as warranted, while remaining compliant with the State’s Brown Act, for a 30-day 
period beginning August 20, 2022, to September 18, 2022.  Adopting this resolution would permit 
the Board of Directors the option of all Cameron Park Community Services District public 
meetings to be held virtually while allowing members of the public to join during all open and 
public proceedings.  A hybrid model would be the use of teleconferencing for meeting 
participants who would not be present for the meetings held at the Community Center while the 
meeting was taking place in-person.  Members of the public and staff could opt to join in-person 
or virtually.  The District would post the meeting agenda with the necessary information for 
joining the meeting online or by phone.  A new resolution will need to be adopted by the Board 
of Directors at least every 30-days to have the option of having public meetings held virtually. 
 
Attachment:   11.a – Resolution 2022-28 



Attachment 11a 

Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-28 
of the Board of Directors 

of the Cameron Park Community Services District 
August 17, 2022 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CAMERON PARK 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT AUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE 
MEETINGS OF THE LEGISLATIVE BODIES OF CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY 

SERVICES DISTRICT FOR THE PERIOD AUGUST 20, 2022, TO SEPTEMBER 18, 2022, 
PURSUANT TO BROWN ACT PROVISIONS. 

 
WHEREAS, the Cameron Park Community Services District is committed to preserving 

and nurturing public access and participation in meetings of the Board of Directors; and  
 

WHEREAS, all meetings of Cameron Park Community Services District’s legislative 
bodies are open and public, as required by the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Gov. Code 54950 – 
54963), so that any member of the public may attend, participate, and watch the District’s 
legislative bodies conduct their business; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Brown Act, Government Code section 54953(e), makes provisions for 
remote teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, without 
compliance with the requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), subject to the 
existence of certain conditions; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors does hereby find that the legislative bodies of 
Cameron Park Community Services District shall conduct their meetings without compliance 
with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of Government Code section 54953, as authorized by 
subdivision (e) of section 54953, and that such legislative bodies shall comply with the 
requirements to provide the public with access to the meetings as prescribed in paragraph (2) of 
subdivision (e) of section 54953; and   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF Cameron Park Community 
Services District DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Recitals. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated into 
this Resolution by this reference. 
 
Section 2. Remote Teleconference Meetings. The General Manager and legislative bodies of 
Cameron Park Community Services District are hereby authorized and directed to take all 
actions necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of this Resolution including, conducting 
open and public meetings in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) and other 
applicable provisions of the Brown Act. 
 
Section 3. Effective Date of Resolution. This Resolution shall take effect immediately 
upon its adoption and shall be effective until the earlier of (i) September 18, 2022, or such time 
the Board of Directors adopts a subsequent resolution in accordance with Government Code 



Resolution No. 2022-28  Page 2 of 2 

section 54953(e)(3) to extend the time during which the legislative bodies of Cameron Park 
Community Services District may continue to teleconference without compliance with 
paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of section 54953. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of Cameron Park Community 
Services District, this 17th day of August 2022, by the following vote: 

 
AYES:   

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ __________________________________ 
Felicity Wood Carlson, President  André Pichly 
Board of Directors     General Manager     



  

CPFD-EDCBD MOU August 17, 2022 Page 1 

 Cameron Park 
Community Services District 

 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
DATE:  August 17, 2022 
   
FROM: Dusty Martin, Fire Chief 
     
AGENDA ITEM #12:  MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CAMERON 

PARK FIRE DEPARTMENT AND EL DORADO COUNTY BUILDING 

DEPARTMENT   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   APPROVE RESOLUTION 2022-24 AND MORANDUM OF 

UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CAMERON PARK FIRE 

DEPARTMENT AND EL DORADO COUNTY BUILDING 

DEPARTMENT   
 
 
Discussion 
A Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is needed with El Dorado County to 
formally document the current practice that has been going on for some time. An MOU 
would document the responsibilities of the building department and the fire 
department. This item was reviewed and discussed at the August 2, 2022, Fire & 
Emergency Services Committee and is before the full Board for approval. 
 
Attachments: 
12.A – Memorandum of Understanding between Cameron Park Fire Department and El 
Dorado County Building Department 
12.B – Resolution 2022-24 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1 

Memorandum of Understanding  

Between the 

County of El Dorado and the Cameron Park Fire Department 

Regarding the 

Delegation of Enforcement of Certain Fire and Panic Safety Provisions 

Found in the 2019 California Building Standards Code 

I. Purpose

California Health and Safety Code Section 13146 requires the responsibility for enforcement of 
building standards adopted by the State Fire Marshal related to fire and panic safety in R-3 
dwellings, as described in Section 310.4 of Part 2 of the California Code of Regulations Title 24, 
to be delegated to either the chief of the fire authority or the chief building official of the 
county. The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is to define those 
responsibilities, as described in El Dorado County Resolution No. 038-2020 of the Board of 
Supervisors of the County of El Dorado, where they pertain to R-3 dwellings located in the 
jurisdiction of both the County of El Dorado and the Cameron Park Fire Department and known 
collectively as “parties” to this agreement. 

II. Scope

This MOU applies to the delegation of enforcement related to those fire and panic safety 
provisions for R-3 dwellings as found in California Code of Regulations Title 14, Division 1.5, 
Chapter 7, Subchapter 2and Title 24, Parts 1 through 12.   

III. Roles and Responsibilities

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby agreed by and between the parties as follows: 

a. The COUNTY OF EL DORADO Chief Building Official, or their designee, shall be responsible
for the enforcement of the following fire and panic safety provisions related to R-3
dwellings located in the jurisdiction of the Cameron Park Fire Department.

Attachment  12A



 

2 
 

 

  T14 Fire Safei T24 CA Building Standards Codeii 
  Part 2iii Part 2.5iv Part 5v Part 9vi 

Occupancy Classification and Use NA   302  NA NA 202 
Means of Egress  NA Ch. 10 R311 NA Ch. 10 
Emergency Escape/Rescue Windows  NA 1030 R310 NA 1030 
Dwelling/Garage Fire Separation  NA 406.3  R302.6 NA NA 
Fire Protection of Floors-Walls-Roof  NA 704 /706 R302.11 NA  NA 
Draft Stopping/Fireblocking  NA 708.4.2   R302  NA   NA 
Exterior Wildfire Exposure Const.  NA 701A R337 NA 4905 
Roof Coverings  NA 1507 R905 NA 4905 
Solar Photovoltaic Power Systems  NA 3111 R324 NA 1204 
Smoke Alarms/Carbon Monoxide Alarms NA 907/915 R314 NA 915/1103 
Automatic Fire Sprinkler Systems NA 903.2.8 R313 612 903.2.8 
Manufactured Home Automatic 
Sprinkler System Water Supply viii NA NA R313.3.5 NA 507 

 
b. The Cameron Park Fire Department Fire Chief, or their designee, shall be responsible for the 

enforcement of the following fire and panic safety provisions related to R-3 dwellings 
located in the jurisdiction of the Cameron Park Fire Department. 

Fire & Panic Provision T14 Fire Safe  T24 CA Building Standards Code 
  Part 2 Part 2.5 Part 5 Part 9 

Address Identification 1274 502.1 R319.1 NA 505.1 
Fire Apparatus Access Roads 1273 NA NA NA 503 
Fire Access to Buildings and Roofs NA NA NA NA 316.4 
Fire Protection Water Supplies 1275 NA NA NA 507 
Liquid Petroleum Gas Systemsvii 
Underground Tank Installations NA NA NA Ch. 12 Ch. 61 

Vegetation Management Compliance 1276 701A.5 R337.1.5 NA 4906 
 

c. Both parties agree to enforce all applicable local fire and panic safety codes and ordinances 
related to R-3 dwellings during the course of their enforcement activities. 
 

d. Both parties agree that when a new or substantially revised fire and panic safety provision 
related to R-3 dwellings is identified in writing by either party, or the State Fire Marshal, 
during the term of this MOU that the parties shall as soon as practical meet and develop 
interim guidance for the enforcement of that provision until such time that an MOU 
amendment can be agreed on. 

 
e. Both parties agree that all appeals of orders, decisions or determinations of provisions 

found in this MOU shall be made utilizing the applicable Board of Appeal provisions 
described in California Code of Regulations Title 24, Part 2 or Part 9. 

 
 



3 

IV. Reporting Requirements

Parties agree to utilize the County of El Dorado’s current permit tracking program to record the 
status of all related plan review/inspections performed as part of a R-3 dwelling construction 
project.  

V. Amendments

This MOU shall be in force upon the signature of authorized representatives from both parties, 
may be amended by mutual consent of the parties, and shall remain in effect until terminated 
under Section VII.  At the conclusion of the triennial code adoption process for the regulations 
identified in Section II, the parties anticipate that amendments may be appropriate and, upon 
such a request by either party, the parties agree to meet and consider any proposed 
amendments in good faith. 

VI. Limits

This MOU pertains to items associated with the enforcement of fire and panic safety provisions 
for R-3 dwellings as described in the California Building Standards Code only.  This MOU does 
not pertain to all other occupancy types or subjects found in this code. 

VII. Termination of MOU

Each party shall have the right to terminate the MOU by giving 60 days written notice in writing 
to the other party at any time. If the MOU is terminated by either party, steps shall be taken to 
ensure that the termination does not affect any prior obligation, project, or activity already in 
progress. Any such notice or any other written notice provided under this MOU shall be in 
writing and served by depositing the same in the United States Post Office, postage prepaid, 
and addressed as follows: 

FOR COUNTY: 

Don Ashton 
Chief Administrative Officer or successor 
330 Fair Lane 
Placerville, CA 95667 

with a copy to: 

Chief Building Official 
County of El Dorado 
Planning and Building Department 
2850 Fairlane Court 
Placerville, CA  95667 



4 

FOR FIRE DISTRICT: 

Cameron Park Fire Department 
3200 Country Club Dr 
Cameron Park, CA 95682 

VIII. Costs and Liability

Both parties agree that this MOU does not provide for remuneration for the enforcement 
responsibilities allocated herein.  Consistent with Health and Safety Code section 
13146(b), each party may establish its own applicant fees to recover the reasonable costs of 
providing a service under this MOU, but neither party will seek to recover such costs from the 
other.  Each party shall remain responsible for its own acts or omissions in carrying out the 
enforcement responsibilities allocated herein.   

IX. Approvals

The terms and conditions of this MOU are executed by the representatives whose signatures 
appear below on behalf of their respective agencies. The parties to this MOU represent that the 
undersigned individuals executing this MOU on their respective behalf are fully authorized 
to do so by law or other appropriate instrument and to bind said parties to obligations set 
forth herein.   

County of El Dorado Cameron Park Community Services District 

______________________  _______  
Don Ashton                             Date  

 __________________________________  
Felicity Wood Carlson                          Date     
President, Board of Directors   

Chief Administrative Officer 

End Notes 

I T14 refers to California Code of Regulations Title 14 Natural Resources Division 1.5 Department of Forestry 
  Chapter 7 - Fire Protection Subchapter 2 SRA Fire Safe Regulations), 2020 edition. 
ii Columns below describe the relevant code section where this topic is found. Additional sections of the code 
   may also describe the topic but are not listed here for use in interpreting this MOU. 
iii Part 2 refers to the California Building Code, 2019 edition. 
iv Part 2.5 refers to the California Residential Code, 2019 edition. 
v  Part 5 refers to the California Plumbing Code, 2019 edition. 
vi Part 9 refers to the California Fire Code, 2019 edition. 
vii Includes LPG Storage Tank and all external piping to the building. 
viii The Fire Authority shall be responsible for Automatic Sprinkler System plan review, and shall provide 
    the following information to the Building Department: size of pipe, length of run from the meter to 

 the connection, elevation changes, and pressure required.        



Attachment 12B 

 

 
Resolution No. 2022-24  Page 1 of 2 
 

Resolution No. 2022-24 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CAMERON PARK 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF EL DORADO AND CAL FIRE/CAMERON 

PARK FIRE DEPARTMENT REGARDING THE DELEGATION OF ENFORCEMENT OF 
CERTAIN FIRE AND PANIC SAFETY PROVISIONS 

 
WHEREAS, the Cameron Park Community Services District is committed to the clear 

delegation of enforcement by and between the County of El Dorado and the Cameron Park Fire 
Department (CPFD); and  
 

WHEREAS, the California Health and Safety Code Section 13146 requires the 
responsibility for enforcement of building standards adopted by the State Fire Marshal related 
to fire and panic safety in R-3 dwellings, as described in Section 310.4 of Part 2 of the California 
Code of Regulations Title 24, to be delegated to either the chief of the fire authority or the chief 
building official of the county.; and 
 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is to define 
those responsibilities, as described in El Dorado County Resolution No. 038-2020 of the Board of 
Supervisors of the County of El Dorado, where they pertain to R-3 dwellings located in the 
jurisdiction of both the County of El Dorado and the Cameron Park Fire Department and 
known collectively as “parties” to this agreement; and  
 

WHEREAS, the MOU applies to the delegation of enforcement related to those fire and 
panic safety provisions for R-3 dwellings as found in California Code of Regulations Title 14, 
Division 1.5, Chapter 7, Subchapter 2and Title 24, Parts 1 through 12.; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County of El Dorado Chief Building Official, or their designee, shall be 

responsible for the enforcement of the fire and panic safety provisions related to R-3 dwellings 
located in the jurisdiction of the Cameron Park Fire Department pursuant to Table a. in section 
III of the MOU and  incorporated herein by reference; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Cameron Park Fire Department Fire Chief, or their designee, shall be 

responsible for the enforcement of the fire and panic safety provisions related to R-3 dwellings 
located in the jurisdiction of the Cameron Park Fire Department pursuant to Table b. in section 
III of the MOU and  incorporated herein by reference; and 

 
WHEREAS, both parties agree to enforce all applicable local fire and panic safety codes 

and ordinances related to R-3 dwellings during the course of their enforcement activities; and 
 
WHEREAS, both parties agree that when a new or substantially revised fire and panic 

safety provision related to R-3 dwellings is identified in writing by either party, or the State Fire 
Marshal, during the term of the MOU that the parties shall as soon as practical meet and 



Resolution No. 2022-24  Page 2 of 2 
 

develop interim guidance for the enforcement of that provision until such time that an MOU 
amendment can be agreed on; and 

 
WHEREAS, both parties agree that all appeals of orders, decisions or determinations of 

provisions found in this MOU shall be made utilizing the applicable Board of Appeal 
provisions described in California Code of Regulations Title 24, Part 2 or Part 9. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF Cameron Park Community 
Services District DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The District hereby resolves to approve the Memorandum of Understanding between 
the County of El Dorado and CAL FIRE/ Cameron Park Fire Department. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of Cameron Park Community 

Services District, this 17th day of August 2022, by the following vote: 

 
AYES:   

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ __________________________________ 
Felicity Wood Carlson, President  André Pichly 
Board of Directors     General Manager 



  

ALS Agreement  August 17, 2022 Page 1 

 Cameron Park 
Community Services District 

 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
DATE:  August 17, 2022 
   
FROM: Dusty Martin, Fire Chief 
     
AGENDA ITEM #13:  ADVANCED LIFE SUPPORT AMBULANCE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

EL DORADO COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY AND 

CAL FIRE/CAMERON PARK FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   APPROVE RESOLUTION 2022-25 AND ADVANCED LIFE SUPPORT 

AMBULANCE AGREEMENT BETWEEN EL DORADO COUNTY 

EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY AND CAL FIRE/CAMERON 

PARK FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 
 
Discussion 
This is an agreement between the El Dorado County JPA and Cameron Park Fire 
Department to provide medic unit staffing. This is a reoccurring agreement.  This item 
was reviewed and discussed at the August 2, 2022, Fire & Emergency Services 
Committee and is before the full Board for approval. 
 
Attachment: 
13.a – Advanced Life Support Ambulance Agreement 
13.b – Resolution 2022-25 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1 

ADVANCED LIFE SUPPORT AMBULANCE AGREEMENT  
BETWEEN  

EL DORADO COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY 
AND  

 CAL FIRE/CAMERON PARK FIRE DEPARTMENT 

This Agreement made and entered into by and between the El Dorado County 
Emergency Services Authority (hereinafter referred to as “JPA”); and the Cal 
Fire/Cameron Park Fire Department (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), whose 
principal place of business is 3200 Country Club Drive, Cameron Park, CA 95682.

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the JPA is responsible for providing Advanced Life Support (“ALS”) pre-
hospital medical care within its jurisdiction, in compliance with Contract #2298 for Pre-
hospital Advanced Life Support, Ambulance and Dispatch Services with the County of 
El Dorado (“Master Contract”); and 

WHEREAS, Contractor desires to provide ALS ambulance service in El Dorado 
County, for  emergency and non-emergency prehospital calls for service, and routine 
medical transportation; and  

WHEREAS, the Contractor, from time to time is requested to provide Standby Services 
for Special Events, such as for an event where spectators and/or participants in the 
event have a potential for illness or injury, or for any situation where an event results in 
a gathering of persons in one general locale, sufficient in numbers, or engaged in an 
activity, that creates a need to have one or more EMS resources at the site as defined 
by EMS Agency Policy issued by the EMS Agency Medical Director; and 

WHEREAS, the JPA and the Contractor agree that it is necessary to clearly define all 
expectations and regulations regarding the provision of ALS ambulance service for 
emergency and non-emergency prehospital calls, Standby and Special Event Services 
and routine medical transportation services in the current Contractor Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, this Agreement is developed in compliance with the Master Contract with 
the County of El Dorado; and 

WHEREAS, Contractor agrees to comply with the requirements of the California Health 
and Safety Code, Division 2.5, Section 1797 et seq.; California Code of Regulations, 
Title 22, Division 9, Chapter 4, Article 7, Section 100167; the County Emergency 
Medical Service and Medical Transportation Ordinance; Contract #2298 for Pre-hospital 

El Dorado County 
Emergency Services Authority 

Attachment 13A



2 

Advanced Life Support, Ambulance and Dispatch Services with the County of El 
Dorado; the standards of the El Dorado County EMS Agency, including but not limited 
to the County EMS Agency Policy and Procedure Manual, El Dorado County Trauma 
Plan, and applicable agency, local and state statutes, ordinances or regulations; and 

WHEREAS, the El Dorado County EMS Agency Medical Director, (“EMSA MD”) 
through the County EMS Agency, and as defined in the Master Contract, has the 
authority to develop overall plans, policies, and medical standards to ensure that 
effective levels of ALS care are maintained within the County; and that the EMSA MD 
has the authority for establishing the minimum required medical equipment, medication 
inventories, and medical protocols, with exception to ambulance specifications; and 

WHEREAS, the JPA and the Contractor agree that a higher level of medical training 
may be necessary to provide patient care. The JPA may require the Contractor to 
provide a higher standard of medical training than is required by the California Code of 
Regulations Title 22; and 

WHEREAS, the EMSA MD shall have retrospective, concurrent, and prospective 
medical control including access to all medical information pertinent to data collection, 
evaluation and analysis; and 

WHEREAS, County is a Covered Entity, as defined in the Privacy Rule of the Health 
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Pub. L. No. 104-161 of 1996 ("HIPAA") and 
Contractor is defined as a Business Associate of the County under this law, which 
requires protection of any disclosure of Public Health Information (PHI) pursuant to this 
Agreement; and includes adherence to the Health Information Technology for Economic 
and Clinical Health Act (the HITECH Act), as incorporated in the American Recovery 
and Reinvestment Act of 2009, Public Law 111-005; and the Genetic Information 
Nondiscrimination Act (the GINA). 

NOW, THEREFORE, the JPA and Contractor mutually agree as follows: 

SECTION 1-DEFINITIONS 

Definitions contained in the Master Contract are herein incorporated into this Agreement 
by reference. 

SECTION 2-SCOPE OF SERVICES 

2.1 Contractor agrees to provide full-service ALS Ambulance Services as described in 
this Agreement, and the terms and conditions of the El Dorado County Emergency 
Medical Service and Medical Transportation Ordinance.  In the performance of its 
obligation hereunder, it is agreed that the Contractor is subject to the medical control of 
the EMSA MD, and to the control or direction of the JPA. 

2.2 Contractor shall provide and operate one (1) pre-hospital ALS ambulance(s) as 
provided in the California Code of Regulations, Title 22, Division 9, Chapter 4, Article 7, 
Section 100167.   



3 

2.3 Contractor shall at all times meet the requirements set forth by the California 
Highway Patrol; the California Vehicle Code; the State of California Health and Safety 
Code; the State of California Emergency Medical Services Authority, the California 
Code of Regulations, the El Dorado County Emergency Medical Service and Medical 
Transportation Ordinance, the El Dorado County EMS Agency Policies, Procedures and 
Field Treatment Protocols, JPA Policies and Procedures and any other applicable 
statute, ordinance, and resolution regulating ALS services provided under this 
Agreement, including but not by way of limitation, personnel, vehicles, equipment, 
services, and supplies which are the subject of this Agreement.  

In the event of any conflicting statute, ordinance, or regulation, the statute, ordinance, or 
regulation setting forth the more stringent requirement shall be met. 

2.4 This Agreement is for pre-hospital ALS ambulance services provided in the primary 
response area of El Dorado County known as CSA No. 7, also referred to as the West 
Slope of El Dorado County.  Contractor shall be responsible for providing pre-hospital 
ALS ambulance service for all requests for ALS service received from any person or 
any agency in the coverage area and dispatched through the designated dispatch 
center. 

2.5 Contractor shall ensure that personnel are familiar with local geography throughout 
the primary response area. 

2.6 Performance in this Agreement means appropriately staffed and equipped 
ambulances at the Advanced Life Support level which respond within defined Response 
Time standards and performance standards pursuant to the requirements established 
by the County and articulated in the Master Contract. Clinical performance must be 
consistent with approved local medical standards and protocols. The conduct of 
personnel must be professionally and courteous at all times. In the performance of its 
obligation hereunder, it is agreed that Contractor is subject to medical control or 
direction of the County and the JPA. 

2.7 Contractor shall not advertise itself or the responding ambulance unit as providing 
ALS services unless routinely providing ALS services on a continuous twenty-four (24) 
hr-per-day basis, as provided in the California Code of Regulations, Title 22, Division 9, 
Chapter 4, Article 7, Section 100167. 

2.8 The designated Base Hospital for County Service Area No. 7 is Marshall Medical 
Center. 

2.9 The designated Dispatch Center for County Service Area No. 7 is the California 
Department of Dorestry and Fire Protection (CAL Fire) Emergency Command Center in 
Camino. 



4 

SECTION 3-SERVICE STANDARDS 
3.1 Contractor shall transport each patient in need of or requiring transport to the 
appropriate hospital as defined in County Protocol.  

3.2 Contractor shall immediately respond to requests for ambulance service from the 
designated dispatch center to the address or location given unless diverted by the 
designated dispatch center pursuant to the JPA’s System Status Management Plan.   

3.3  Contractor shall notify the designated dispatch center when en route, upon arrival 
at scene, upon departure from scene, upon arrival at hospital, and upon departure from 
hospital.  Contractor shall notify the designated dispatch center when they are 
committed to a call, out of service, back in service, back in in county, or when any other 
status change occurs.  

3.4 Contractor shall immediately notify the designated dispatch center to be assigned 
to an incident in any circumstance involving an emergency response at a location not 
previously dispatched by the designated dispatch center. 

3.5 In the event that the Contractor is unable to respond to a request for ambulance 
service, the crew shall immediately notify the designated dispatch center. 

3.6 Contractor shall notify the hospital and give a report on patient status, treatment 
given, and estimated time of arrival. Contractor shall communicate current and ongoing 
patient assessments to the Hospital and collaborate with Hospital in the provision of 
care, and follow physician or MICN direction as instructed. 

3.7 If contact with the Hospital is not obtainable, the Contractor shall operate under El 
Dorado County Treatment Protocols. 

3.8 Contractor shall allow inspections, site visits, or ride-alongs at any time by County 
EMS Agency staff, and/or JPA staff, with reasonable notice, for purposes of Agreement 
compliance and medical quality assurance. 

3.11 The Contractor and all personnel who provide service on the ambulance unit shall 
abide by the policies and operating procedures set forth by the JPA to meet the 
implementation of the System Status Management Plan including system move-up, 
staffing adjustments, transfers, standbys, and all other activities of the ambulance 
service.  

3.12 The maximum unit hour utilization (UHU) for a 24-hour ambulance transport unit 
crew shall not exceed 0.40 continuously without JPA and County approval. The JPA 
and Contractor may review the System Status Management Plan any time the ratio of 
unit utilization to unit hour production exceeds 0.40 UHU.  

SECTION 4- STANDBY AND SPECIAL EVENT COVERAGE 
4.1 Non-dedicated Standby Ambulance Service 
Upon request by law enforcement and/or fire departments, and where available 
units/staffing exist, the Contractor may furnish courtesy stand-by ambulance coverage 



5 

at emergency incidents involving a potential danger to the personnel of the requesting 
agency or the general public. Other community service-oriented entities may request 
non-dedicated standby ambulance coverage for special events from the Contractor. 
The Contractor is encouraged to provide such non-dedicated stand-by coverage to 
events when possible. The Contractor will offer such non-dedicated standby 
ambulance services at no charge. 

4.2 Dedicated Standby Ambulance Service 
Community service-oriented entities or commercial enterprises may request dedicated 
stand-by ambulance coverage for special events from the Contractor.  Each dedicated 
standby ambulance service event shall have a two-hour minimum. The Contractor will 
offer such dedicated standby ambulance services at the rates established by the El 
Dorado County Board of Supervisors.  The Contractor is hereby authorized by JPA to 
execute any necessary contracts for these services with the requester of services.  
Contractor shall secure all billing information required by County so that County can bill 
the responsible parties for such services and provide to the JPA a copy of any such 
contract and required billing information. 

SECTION 5-PERSONNEL 
5.1 Contractor shall maintain a minimum staffing level of not less than one (1) EMT-
Basic and one (1) EMT-Paramedic for each in-service Ambulance. 

5.2 Contractor shall ensure that all EMT-Paramedic personnel are licensed by the 
State of California and accredited with the El Dorado County EMS Agency.  
Contractor shall ensure that all EMT-Basic personnel are State of California certified.  
Personnel whose certification/accreditation has lapsed shall not be allowed to provide 
pre-hospital care within El Dorado County until they have met all requirements to bring 
current their certification/accreditation. 

5.3 Contractor shall ensure compliance with all EMT-Basic and EMT-Paramedic 
regulations from the State of California Health and Safety Code, Division 2.5, and Title 
22, Division 9, and ensure that the County EMS Agency Policies, Procedures and Field 
Treatment Protocols are followed.  

5.4 Contractor shall ensure that all personnel are physically and mentally fit to serve in 
the prehospital care capacity. No personnel shall use intoxicating substances while on 
duty, nor shall they be used in the eight (8) hours prior to reporting for duty. 

5.5 In compliance with federal law, the JPA and its Contractors shall maintain a drug 
free workplace, including legalized marijuana.  

5.6 In the case of a Critical Care Transport (CCT), each CCT ambulance shall be 
staffed with a minimum of one EMT-Basic and one (1) qualified medical person(s) to 
provide critical care during transport, as agreed upon by the sending hospital. Each 
ambulance shall be equipped with appropriate medical equipment and supplies. 

5.7 Contractor shall ensure that the medical certification and/or accreditation level of 
all personnel be available on request. Said identification shall be worn as deemed 
operationally necessary.  



6 

5.8 Contractor shall maintain good working relationships with fire agencies; first 
response agencies; law enforcement; base hospitals; County EMS Agency; and City 
and County staff.  The conduct of personnel must be professional and courteous at all 
times. 

5.9 Contractor shall ensure professional and courteous conduct at all times from all 
personnel assigned to the JPA Ambulance Unit. 

5.10 Contractor shall conduct annual written performance evaluations on each 
employee assigned to the JPA Ambulance Unit with regard to their medical duties and 
performance. 

5.11 Contractor shall participate in the Department of Motor Vehicle Pull Notice 
program for regular updates of employees’ driver’s license status. 

5.12 Contractor and Contractor employees assigned to the JPA Ambulance Unit 
shall comply with all applicable JPA policies, operating procedures, and standards. 

5.13 The Contractor will negotiate individually with recognized employee 
organizations for wage and fringe benefits as well as working conditions. Contractor 
shall ensure safe and sanitary living quarters for on-duty personnel. 

SECTION 6- EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
6.1 Contractor shall be an equal opportunity employer and shall be committed to an 
active Equal Employment Opportunity Program (EEOP).  It shall be the stated policy of 
the Contractor that all employees and applicants shall receive equal consideration and 
treatment in employment without regard to race, color, religion, ancestry, national 
origin, age (over 40) sex, marital status, medical condition, physical handicap, or other 
protected status. 

All recruitment, hiring, placements, transfers and promotions will be on the basis of 
individual skills, knowledge and abilities, regardless of the above identified categories.  
All other personnel actions such as compensation, benefits, layoffs, terminations, 
training, etc., shall also be administered without discrimination.  Equal employment 
opportunity will be promoted through a continual and progressive EEOP.  The objective 
of an EEOP is to ensure nondiscrimination in employment and, wherever possible, to 
actively recruit and include for consideration for employment minorities, women and the 
physically handicapped. 

SECTION 7-TRAINING & EDUCATION 
7.1 Contractor shall maintain records of all EMS training, continuing education and 
skills maintenance as required by the El Dorado County EMS Agency.  Contractor shall 
provide specific records upon written request to the JPA. 

7.2 Contractor shall participate in EMS system components that include paramedic, 
nurse and trainee field observations including ride-a-longs, disaster drills, and 
continuing education programs.  



7 

7.3 Contractor shall provide qualified EMT-Paramedic personnel to be Field Training 
Officers (FTO’s) to instruct and accredit paramedics who are new to the system or who 
are in an approved paramedic internship program.  FTO’s shall provide orientation to 
El Dorado County EMS Policies, Procedures, Protocols, Trauma Plan, EMS Plan; EMS 
radio communication and Base Station, receiving hospitals, and the JPA Policies & 
Procedures.  FTO’s shall provide training in any optional scope of practice procedure 
currently in effect in El Dorado County.  

7.3.1 Contractor shall ensure that FTO’s shall be allowed to attend meetings 
and/or training pertinent to the El Dorado County EMS system. The EMSA MD shall 
approve all El Dorado County FTO’s. 

7.4 Contractor shall participate in providing community education on 9-1-1 system 
access, CPR and first aid, and may utilize community organizations to support and 
enhance local community efforts in providing public education. 

7.5 Contractor agrees that EMT- Paramedics and EMT-Basics shall maintain their 
accreditation and certification or licensure as required by state and local policy.  

7.6 In addition to being either an EMT-Paramedic or EMT-Basic, Contractor agrees 
that employees staffing an ambulance shall at a minimum meet the agency’s firefighter 
requirements.  Employees will receive on-going firefighting training and shall participate 
in exercise drills to maintain an acceptable level of skill, knowledge and experience. 
Employees will be suitably outfitted with the necessary protective equipment and gear to 
perform the duties of a Firefighter   

SECTION 8- QUALITY ASSURANCE 
8.1 Contractor shall at a minimum follow the requirements of the JPA CQI Plan. 

8.2 Contractor shall participate in assigned JPA quality improvement/quality assurance 
activities and shall appoint appropriate personnel to serve on pre-hospital and disaster 
committees, as needed.  These committees and/or activities shall include, but are not 
limited to, Continuous Quality Improvement Committee (CQIC), Medical Advisory 
Committee (MAC), peer review, post incident critiques, and as mutually agreed upon 
between the Contractor and the JPA. 

8.3 Contractor shall cooperate fully in supplying all requested documentation to the 
JPA, the Base Hospital and the County EMS Agency, and shall participate fully in all 
quality assurance programs mandated by the County. 

8.4 Contractor shall allow inspections, site visits or ride-a-longs at any time by JPA and 
County EMS Agency staff, with a minimum of one (1) hour notice to the Fire Chief or 
designee for purposes of JPA contract compliance and medical quality assurance. 

8.5 Contractor shall comply with California Code of Regulations, Title 22. Social 
Security, Division 9. Pre-Hospital Emergency Medical Services, Chapter 12. EMS 
System Quality Improvement, Articles 1 thru 5. 



8 

SECTION 9- MUTUAL AID, MASS CASUALTY & DISASTER 
9.1 Mutual aid response shall be performed in accordance with approved cover and 
mutual aid agreements. In the course of rendering Mutual Aid, the Contractor shall be 
exempt from the maximum response time standards criteria. Contractor shall advise 
dispatch that they are unable to respond to mutual aid requests if such response is in 
conflict with a response in the Primary Response Area. 

9.2 Contractor shall cooperate with JPA in establishing disaster and multi-casualty 
incident plans, policies and procedures; and assist in planning and participate in 
interagency disaster/multi-casualty incident training exercises annually. 

9.3 During declared disasters or large-scale multi-casualty incidents, Contractor shall 
be exempt from all responsibilities for response-time performance. When the 
Contractor is notified that disaster assistance is no longer required, the Contractor 
shall return its resources to the primary area of responsibility and shall resume all 
operations in a timely manner. 

SECTION 10- AMBULANCE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 
10.1 The JPA will be financially responsible for the ambulance fleet.  This financial 
responsibility includes asset/inventory management such as: 

A. Communications equipment (i.e., radios, tablets, AVL, Cradlepoint)
B. Vehicle maintenance
C. Vehicle parts
D. Vehicle tires
E. Medical Equipment (i.e. gurneys, powerloads, stair chairs, cardiac monitors,

mechanical compression devices)
F. Medical supplies
G. Controlled Substances & Controlled Substance Storage
H. Airgas equipment rental
I. FasTrak equipment and fines
J. Fuel
K. Insurance for medic units

10.2 Contractor shall possess and maintain adequate medical supplies in compliance 
with the El Dorado County EMS Agency, and JPA Policies and Procedures Manuals. In 
addition, Contractor agrees to comply with all federal, state, local laws, rules and 
regulations and JPA policies and procedures related to the security and protection of 
the ambulances, medical supplies, equipment and controlled substances. 

10.3 Standards for medical equipment shall be in compliance with the County EMS 
Agency Policy and Procedure Manual. The County EMS Agency shall maintain the 
Policy and Procedure Manual and manual updates online at their website.  Contractor 
shall be charged with knowledge of the Polices & Procedures.  Policies and Procedures 
shall be updated from time to time as determined necessary by the County EMS 
Agency.  

10.4 Compliance with these medical equipment requirements is mandated for in service 
reserve ambulances. The ambulance and supplies shall be maintained in a clean, 
sanitary and safe mechanical condition at all times. 



9 

10.5 Upon inspection by the County or the JPA, any primary or in service reserve 
ambulance failing to meet these medical equipment requirements shall be immediately 
removed from service and remain out of service until any deficiency is corrected.  At the 
time when a reserve ambulance unit is used to provide the services required by this 
Agreement, the unit shall comply with all equipment requirements as specified in this 
Agreement. 

10.6 Contractor shall utilize and maintain two-way communication equipment that is 
compatible with County approved dispatch, designated Base Station facilities and all 
EMS users.  Communication capabilities and use of frequencies may be monitored by 
the JPA and the County EMS Agency.   

10.7 Contractor shall recognize the right of the JPA to move issued equipment to 
another Contractor as needed to assure system wide services, as long as such 
movement does not impede Contractor’s ability to provide the services defined in the 
Master Contract and this Agreement. 

10.8 Contractor shall not take ownership of the ambulance or any related equipment. 

10.9 The JPA shall provide ambulances and all other required equipment needed to 
function as an Advanced Life Support Unit. 

SECTION 11- REPORTS & POLICIES 
11.1 Contractor shall submit reports and data to the JPA in a form and manner 
approved by the JPA.  The articles hereinafter detail reporting requirements and 
timetables, which are intended to be mandatory and exemplary but not intended to be 
all-inclusive. Contractor shall be responsible to ensure that all information is provided 
to the JPA in a timely manner as indicated throughout this Agreement.   

11.2 Contractor personnel shall utilize the El Dorado County “Pre-hospital Care 
Report” (PCR) (in electronic digital and/or paper form) for all emergency and non-
emergency responses including non-transports. 

11.2.1 The Pre-hospital Care Report and billing paperwork shall be submitted to 
the County according to the time frames established in writing by Ambulance 
Billing as required by El Dorado County EMS Policy.   

11.2.2 Contractor personnel shall perform due diligence to obtain and transmit all 
required billing and patient care information. If circumstances arise which limit the 
availability of patient information, billing information, and associated information, 
Contractor shall remain responsible to obtain the required information and submit 
it to the County.  Contractor personnel shall adhere to the requirements of the El 
Dorado County EMS Policy for proper reporting and documentation. 

11.3 Ambulance Billing shall notify the JPA of failure to adequately complete and submit 
a PCR within forty-eight (48) hours of the completion of the call.  Repeated failures to 
adequately complete the PCR shall be reported to the JPA, and the JPA shall notify 
Contractor to correct the omission/error situation. The Contractor shall have five 



10 

business days in which to furnish the required information to Ambulance Billing. For 
every ePCR not delivered within five (5) business days of the required delivery date, the 
JPA may fine the Contractor two hundred and fifty ($250) dollars. 

11.4 For every ePCR that is not accurately completed and turned over to the County 
within thirty (30) days of the completion of each call, the JPA may fine Contractor an 
additional one thousand ($1,000) dollars. 

11.5 Contractor shall provide its personnel with Incident Report forms and shall ensure 
that its personnel understand and utilize such forms.  Contractor shall notify the JPA 
within 24-hours of a sentinel event. Examples:  injury to patient, crew or public, or high-
profile incident.  Contractor may also provide notification and Incident Forms to the 
El Dorado County EMS Agency. 

11.6 Contractor shall document any and all incidents of unusual activities or 
occurrences that impacted or had an effect on the normal delivery of services.  Events 
that an attending Paramedic or the Contractor feel should be documented but are not 
appropriate to include on the PCR should be included on the Incident Report.  Such 
activities may include but are not limited to: acts of violence against personnel, 
combative patients, patient care concerns, inter-agency conflicts, medical equipment 
failures, obstacles to responses including chronic adverse road conditions, and radio, 
dispatch, or communication failures.  Any other unusual activities that have the potential 
of affecting patient care shall be documented in established EMSA forms and sent to 
the JPA by the next business day. 

11.7 Contractor shall document vehicle failure above and beyond usual scheduled 
maintenance and repairs and ambulance vehicle accidents that could potentially have a 
detrimental effect on patient care issues. Vehicle failure and ambulance accident 
reports shall be sent to the JPA within 24 hours of the occurrence. 

11.8 For each response within the previous calendar month that exceeds the Response 
Time Standard for the area of dispatch location (Urban, Semi-Rural, Rural, or 
Wilderness) Contractor shall submit a Response Time Exception Report to the JPA.  
The reason for the delayed response time shall be clear, precise, and verifiable in order 
to determine if the exception is acceptable.  These reports shall be submitted to the 
JPA for the previous calendar month of service on a monthly basis by the 1st day of the 
next month. 

11.9 Contractor shall be responsible for maintaining complete and legible vehicle 
inspection logs and have them available for audit by the JPA for a period of one year. 

11.10 Contractor shall be responsible to comply with all operational policies and 
standards currently articulated in this Agreement; the JPA’s Policy and Procedure 
Manual; the Health and Safety Code, Division 2.5; California Code of Regulations, Title 
22, Division 9, policies and procedures promulgated by the California Emergency 
Medical Services Authority and by the El Dorado County Medical Services Agency. 

11.11 The Contractor will provide services to JPA and in conjunction with the provision 
of such services, certain Protected Health Information ("PHI") may be made available to 



11 

Contractor for the purposes of carrying out its obligations.  Contractor agrees to 
comply with all the terms and conditions of Appendix A, HIPAA Business Associate 
Agreement, attached hereto and made by reference a part hereof, regarding the Health 
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 ("HIPAA") and the regulations 
promulgated thereunder. 

In as much as an exchange of Protected Health Information (PHI) will occur between 
JPA and Contractor, Contractor agrees to faithfully distribute to patient the El Dorado 
County Notice of Privacy Practices, to be supplied by JPA, before the first delivery of 
service for all non-emergency transfers and dry runs with patient contact, where 
services were provided to patient.  All Notices of Privacy Practices for emergency 
transfers will be mailed by El Dorado County Ambulance Billing as soon as practical 
following the provision of services. 

11.12 Contractor shall comply with all applicable JPA policies, operating procedures, 
and standards. 

11.13 JPA shall maintain an equipment inventory list and conduct an annual inventory 
of all fixed assets of JPA and/or CSA-7 in the possession of the Contractor.  The list 
shall verified as accurate by the Contractor.  

SECTION 12: COMPETITION 
12.1 Contractor, and its principals are prohibited from engaging in any enterprise that 
effectively results in competition for emergency and non-emergency ambulance 
services of any kind within the Primary Response Area as described in this Agreement. 

SECTION 13- BILLING FOR SERVICES 
13.1 Parties receiving non-emergency and/or emergency medical transport services 
from Contractor shall be billed by County Ambulance Billing for said services. 
Ambulance personnel shall not request nor receive payment for any services provided 
pursuant to this Agreement, nor shall they quote charges to the patient or any other 
concerned individuals or extend promises for special treatment regarding billable 
charges. JPA shall provide ambulance billing rate forms to ambulance personnel, and 
personnel may make these forms available to individuals upon request. 

SECTION 14- COMPENSATION 
14.1 Compensation shall be the JPA Board of Directors approved budget amounts as 
outlined in Appendix B. 

14.2 Contractor shall maintain fiscal records necessary and prudent to meet the 
standards for accounting practices in use by the County, County Service Area 7 and the 
JPA. 

14.3 The JPA will reimburse other Contractor’s for any use of their personnel, on a 
regular basis, in order to provide coverage of back-up units, special details or 
assignments.  Such reimbursement to be at the actual cost of such services to the other 
members of the JPA. 



12 

14.4 A Contractor shall not assume liability for the payment of salary, wages or other 
compensation to officers, agents or employees of the other Contractor’s or parties 
performing service under the Master Contract, or any liability other than that provided in 
this agreement. 

14.5 Contractor shall not be responsible for benefits, wages, seniority, or other 
employee rights granted by any other Contractor to its employees if or when such other 
Contractor employees are assigned to the Contractor in the performance of services 
and functions pursuant to this agreement. 

14.6 Contractor shall not be liable for compensation to or indemnification of other 
Contractor or parties performing service under the Master Contract for injury or 
sickness arising out of the performance of this agreement. 

14.7 The JPA shall provide the funding and insurance policy for ambulance collision 
and comprehensive coverage for equipment of and on the ambulance. 

14.8 The JPA shall provide dispatch services for ambulances, as defined in the Master 
Contract. 

14.9 The JPA shall not be responsible for benefits, wages, seniroty, workers’ 
compensation, or other employee rights granted by law or by contract to Contractor’s 
employees. 

SECTION 15- CHANGES 
15.1 This Agreement may be amended by mutual consent of the parties hereto.  Said 
amendments shall become effective only when in writing and approved by the duly 
authorized Boards and fully executed by duly authorized officers of the parties hereto.   

15.1.1 This Agreement may be terminated by either party, upon receipt of written notice, 
with at least a 90-calendar day advance notice.  

15.1.2 The JPA may deny, suspend or revoke this Agreement for failure of the 
Contractor to comply with this Agreement, the El Dorado County Emergency Medical 
Service and Medical Transportation Ordinance; or applicable policies, procedures and 
regulations.  

SECTION 16- INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
16.1 In performance of the services herein provided for, Contractor shall be, and is, an 
independent contractor, and is not an agent or employee of JPA. 

16.2 Pursuant to this Agreement, it is acknowledged and agreed that the JPA and 
Contractor are both legally separate entities. No other special relationship will arise from 
this Agreement except as so stated. 

16.3 Contractor is, and shall be at all times, deemed independent and shall be wholly 
responsible for the manner in which it performs services required by terms of this 
Agreement.  Contractor exclusively assumes responsibility for acts of its employees, 



13 

associates, and subcontractors, if any are authorized herein, as they relate to services to 
be provided under this Agreement during the course and scope of their employment. 

16.3.1 Contractor shall be responsible for performing the work under this 
Agreement in a safe, professional, skillful and workmanlike manner and shall be 
liable for its own negligence and negligent acts of its employees.  JPA shall not be 
charged with responsibility of preventing risk to the Contractor or its employees. 

16.3.2 JPA engages Contractor for Contractor’s unique qualifications and skills 
as well as those of Contractor's personnel.  Contractor shall not subcontract, 
delegate or assign services to be provided, in whole or in part, to any other person 
or entity without prior written consent of JPA. 

16.4 Contractor is the sole employer of Contractor’s employees. JPA has no right to 
direct, control, schedule, or supervise Contractor’s employees, nor does the JPA have 
the right to hire or fire Contractor’s employees or set their compensation. JPA shall not 
be liable for amounts owed by Contractor as a result of its employment relationship 
with its employees, such as wages, benefits, pension contributions, or workers’ 
compensation. 

SECTION 17- NON-DISCRIMINATION, BENEFITS, & FACILITIES 
17.1 Contractor certifies under the laws of the State of California that Contractor shall 
not unlawfully discriminate in the provision of services because of race, color, creed, 
national origin, sex, age, or physical or mental disability as provided by State and 
federal law and in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 [42 USC 
2000(d)]; Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 USC 6101); Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 
USC 794); Education Amendments of 1972 (20 USC 1681); Americans with Disabilities 
Act of 1990 (42 USC 12132); Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 84; provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code Section 129000 et seq.); 
and regulations promulgated thereunder (Title 2, CCR, Section 7285.0 et seq.); Title 2, 
Division 2, Article 9.5 of the California Government Code, commencing with Section 
11135; and Title 9, Division 4, Chapter 6 of the California Code of Regulations, 
commencing with Section 10800. 

17.2 For the purpose of this Agreement, discriminations on the basis of race, color, 
creed, national origin, sex, age, physical or mental disability, or other protected 
characteristic include, but are not limited to, the following: denying a participant any 
service or providing a benefit to a participant which is different, or is provided in a 
different manner or at a different time from that provided to other participants under this 
Agreement; subjecting a participant to segregation or separate treatment in any matter 
related to the receipt of any service; restricting a participant in any way in the enjoyment 
of any advantage or privilege enjoyed by others receiving any service or benefit; and/or 
treating a participant differently from others in determining whether the participant 
satisfied any admission, enrollment, eligibility, membership or other requirement or 
condition which individuals must meet in order to be provided any service or benefit. 



14 

SECTION 18- INDEMNITY 
18.1 To the fullest extent of the law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold the 
JPA harmless against and from any and all claims, suits, losses, damages and liability 
for damages of every name, kind and description, including attorney’s fees and costs 
incurred, brought for, or on account of, injuries to or death of any person, including but 
not limited to workers, JPA employees, and the public, or damage to property, or any 
economic or consequential losses, which are claimed to or in any way arise out of or are 
connected with the Contractor’s services, operations, or performance hereunder, 
regardless of the existence or degree of fault or negligence on the part of the JPA, the 
Contractor, subcontractor(s) and employee(s) of any of these, except for the sole, or 
active negligence of the JPA, its officers and employees, or as expressly provided by 
statute.  This duty of Contractor to indemnify and save JPA harmless includes the 
duties to defend set forth in California Civil Code Section 2778.  

18.2 To the fullest extent of the law, JPA shall defend, indemnify, and hold the 
Contractor harmless against and from any and all claims, suits, losses, damages and 
liability for damages of every name, kind and description, including attorney’s fees and 
costs incurred, brought for, or on account of, injuries to or death of any person, including 
but not limited to workers, Contractor employees, and the public, or damage to 
property, or any economic or consequential losses, which are claimed to or in any way 
arise out of or are connected with the JPA’s services, operations, or performance 
hereunder, regardless of the existence or degree of fault or negligence on the part of 
the JPA, the Contractor, subcontractor(s) and employee(s) of any of these, except for 
the sole, or active negligence of the Contractor, its officers and employees, or as 
expressly provided by statute.  This duty of JPA to indemnify and save Contractor 
harmless includes the duties to defend set forth in California Civil Code Section 2778.  

SECTION 19- INSURANCE 
19.1 The Contractor shall provide to the JPA proof of a policy of insurance and 
documentation evidencing that the Contractor maintains insurance that meets the 
following requirements set forth hereinafter. 

19.1.1 Full Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability Insurance covering all 
JPA funded employees of the Contractor as required by law in the State of 
California. 

19.1.2 Commercial General Liability Insurance of not less than $6,000,000 
combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage. 

19.1.3 Professional liability for JPA funded employees is required with a limit of 
liability of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. 

19.1.4 Contractor shall furnish a certificate of insurance satisfactory to the JPA 
as evidence that the insurance required above is being maintained. The insurance 
shall be issued by an insurance company acceptable to the JPA. 

19.2 Contractor agrees that the insurance required above shall be in effect at all times 
during the term of this Agreement.  In the event said insurance coverage expires at any 
time or times during the term of this Agreement, Contractor agrees to provide at least 



15 

thirty (30) days prior to said expiration date, a new certificate of insurance evidencing 
insurance coverage as provided for herein for not less than the remainder of term of the 
Agreement, or for a period of not less than one (1) year.  New certificates of insurance 
are subject to the approval of the JPA and Contractor agrees that no work or services 
shall be performed prior to the giving of such approval.  In the event Contractor fails to 
keep in effect at all times insurance coverage as herein provided, JPA may, in addition 
to any other remedies it may have, terminate this Agreement upon the occurrence of 
such event. 

19.2.1 The certificate of insurance must include the following provisions stating 
that: 1) The insurer shall not cancel the insured's coverage without thirty (30) days 
prior written notice to JPA, and; 2) The JPA, its officers, officials, employees, and 
volunteers are included as additional insured, but only insofar as the operations 
under this Agreement are concerned. This provision shall apply to all liability 
policies except worker's compensation and professional liability insurance policies. 

19.3 Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects to the 
JPA, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers.  Any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by the JPA its officers; officials, employees or volunteers shall be in excess 
of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

19.3.1 Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and 
approved by the JPA, either: 

19.3.1.1 The insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-
insured retentions as respects the JPA, its officers, officials, employees, 
and volunteers; or  

19.3.1.2 Contractor shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses 
and related investigations, claim administration and defense expenses. 

19.4 Any failure to comply with the reporting provisions of the policies shall not affect 
coverage provided to the JPA, its officers, officials, employees or volunteers. 

19.5 The insurance companies shall have no recourse against the JPA, its officers and 
employees or any of them for payment of any premiums or assessments under any 
policy issued by any insurance company. 

19.6 The Contractor's obligations shall not be limited by the foregoing insurance 
requirements and shall survive expiration of this Agreement. 

19.7 In the event the Contractor cannot provide an occurrence policy, Contractor shall 
provide insurance covering claims made as a result of performance of this Agreement 
for not less than three (3) years following completion of performance of this Agreement. 

19.7.1 Certificate of insurance shall meet such additional standards as may be 
determined by the JPA. 



16 

SECTION 20- INTEREST OF PUBLIC OFFICIAL 
20.1 Except for their duties to the JPA Board, no official or employee of Contractor 
who exercises any functions or responsibilities in review or approval of services to be 
provided by Contractor under this Agreement shall participate in or attempt to influence 
any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his/her personal interest or interest 
of any corporation, partnership, or association in which he/she is directly or indirectly 
interested; nor shall any such official or employee of the JPA have any interest, direct or 
indirect, in this Agreement or the proceeds thereof. 

SECTION 21- INTEREST OF CONTRACTOR 
21.1 Contractor covenants that Contractor presently has no personal interest or 
financial interest and shall not acquire same in any manner or degree in either: 1) any 
other agreement or contract connected with or directly affected by the services to be 
performed by this Agreement; or, 2) any other entities connected with or directly 
affected by the services to be performed by this Agreement.  

SECTION 22- VENUE 
22.1 Any dispute resolution action arising out of this Agreement, including, but not 
limited to, litigation, mediation, or arbitration, shall be brought in El Dorado County, 
California, and shall be resolved in accordance with the laws of the State of California.  
Contractor waives any removal rights it might have under Code of Civil Procedure 
Section 394. 

SECTION 23- ADMINISTRATION 
23.1 All notices to be given by the parties hereto shall be in writing and sent postage 
prepaid by registered mail.  Notices to Contractor shall be addressed as follows, or to 
such other location as either party directs: 

JPA Cal Fire/Cameron Park Fire 
480 Locust Road 3200 Country Club Drive 
Diamond Springs, CA 95619 Cameron Park, CA 95682 
530-642-0622 (530) 677-6190
Attn:  Executive Director Attn:  Fire Chief 

23.2 The JPA Officer or employee responsible for administering this Agreement is the 
Executive Director, or successor. 

SECTION 24- DISPUTES 
24.1 Should any disputes arise between and/or among the Contractor, other Member 
Agencies, the JPA or the County EMS Agency, all parties will have the right to bring 
such disputes to the JPA Board of Directors, as provided by the Master Contract. 

SECTION 25- FORCE MAJEURE 
25.1 If any party hereto is rendered unable, wholly or in part, by Force Majeure to carry 
out its obligations under this agreement, that party shall give to the other parties hereto 
prompt written notice of the Force Majeure with reasonable full particulars concerning it. 

25.2 Thereupon, the obligations of the party giving the notice, so far as they are affected 
by the Force Majeure, shall be suspended during, but no longer than the continuance 



17 

of, the Force Majeure, except for a reasonable time thereafter required to resume 
performance. 

25.3 During any period in which any party hereto is excused from performance by 
reason of the occurrence of an event of Force Majeure, the party so excused shall 
promptly, diligently, and in good faith take all reasonable action required in order for it to 
be able to commence or resume performance of its obligations under the agreement. 

25.4 Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the party so excused from 
performance shall, during any such period of Force Majeure, take all actions reasonably 
necessary to terminate any temporary restraining orders or preliminary or permanent 
injunctions to enable it to so commence or resume performance of its obligations under 
the agreement  

25.5 The party whose performance is excused due to the occurrence of an event of 
Force Majeure shall, during such period, keep the other parties notified of all such 
actions required in order for it to be able to commence or resume performance of its 
obligations under the agreement. 

25.6 Force Majeure is defined as an act of God, act of public enemy, war and other 
causes not reasonably within the control of any parties hereto. 

25.7 The parties to this Agreement represent that the undersigned individuals 
executing this Agreement on their respective behalf are fully authorized to do so by law 
or other appropriate instrument and to bind upon said parties to the obligations set forth 
herein. 

25.8 If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall continue in full force and 
effect without being impaired or invalidated in any way. 

SECTION 26- TERM 
26.1 This agreement shall become effective on July 1, 2022, and will remain in effect, 
unless terminated pursuant to the provisions herein. This Agreement will be reviewed 
annually.  

SECTION 27-PRIOR AGREEMENTS SUPERSEDED 
This document and the documents referred to herein or exhibits hereto are the entire 
Agreement between the parties, and they supersede all prior written or oral agreements 
or understandings in connection with the same subject matter. Each party 
acknowledges that in entering into this Agreement it does not reply on any statement, 
representation, or warranty other than those expressly set out in this Agreement. 



18 

In witness whereof, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement the day and year 
first below written. 

_____________________________________  Date ___________________ 
Brian K. Veerkamp, Executive Director 
El Dorado County Emergency Services Authority 

Date ___________________ ____________________________________
Felicity Wood Carlson, President 
Board of Directors 



19 

Appendix A 

HIPAA Business Associate Agreement 

EL DORADO COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY 
AND  

 CAL FIRE/ CAMERON PARK FIRE DEPARTMENT 

This HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Amendment (“Amendment”) entered into by 
the El Dorado County Emergency Services Authority (hereinafter referred to as “the 
JPA”) and the Cal Fire/Cameron Park Fire Department (hereinafter referred to as 
“Business Associate”) supplements and is made part of the Business Associate 
Advanced Life Support Ambulance Agreement. (“Underlying Agreement”) as of the date 
of approval by the parties (the “Effective Date”).  

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, JPA and the Business Associate entered into the Underlying 
Agreement pursuant to which the Business Associate provides services to JPA, and 
in conjunction with the provision of such services, certain Protected Health Information 
(“PHI”) and Electronic Protected Health Information (“ePHI”) may be made available to 
the Business Associate for the purposes of carrying out its obligations under the 
Underlying Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the provisions of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability 
Act, Pub. L. No. 104-161 of 1996 (“HIPAA”), more specifically the regulations found at 
Title 45, CFR, Parts 160 and 164 (the “Privacy Rule”), as may be amended from time to 
time, which are applicable to the protection of any disclosure of PHI pursuant to the 
Underlying Agreement; and comply with the HITECH (the Health Information 
Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act of 2009) and the regulations 
thereunder (including 45 C.F.R. Sections 164.308, 164.310, 164.312 and 164.316), that 
apply to a business associate of a covered entity in the same manner that such sections 
apply to the covered entity. 

WHEREAS, County of El Dorado (County) is a Covered Entity, as defined in the 
Privacy Rule; and 

WHEREAS, the JPA and its sub-contracting agency that is a recipient of PHI is a 
Business Associate as defined in the Privacy Rule; and 

WHEREAS, the parties agree that any disclosure or use of PHI be in compliance 
with the Privacy Rule or other applicable law; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants 
contained herein, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Definitions.  Unless otherwise provided in this Amendment, capitalized terms
shall have the same meanings as set forth in the Privacy Rule, as may be
amended from time to time.



 

 
 20  

2.   Scope of Use and Disclosure by the Business Associate of County Disclosed 
PHI. 
A. The Business Associate shall be permitted to use PHI disclosed to it: 

(1) on behalf of the JPA, or to provide services to the JPA for the 
purposes contained herein, if such use or disclosure would not 
violate the Privacy Rule if done by the JPA, or the minimum 
necessary policies and procedures of the JPA and County. 

(2) As necessary to perform any and all of its obligations under the 
Underlying Agreement. 

B. Unless otherwise limited herein, in addition to any other uses and/or 
disclosures permitted or authorized by this Amendment or required by law, 
the Business Associate may: 

(1) Use the PHI in its possession for its proper management and 
administration and to fulfill any legal obligations. 

(2) Disclose the PHI in its possession to a third party for the purpose of 
the Business Associate’s proper management and administration 
or to fulfill any legal responsibilities of the Business Associate.  
The Business Associate may disclose PHI as necessary for the 
Business Associate’s operations only if: 

(a) The disclosure is required by law; or 

(b) The Business Associate obtains a written Business 
Associate agreement from any person or organization to 
which the Business Associate will disclose such PHI that 
the person or organization will comply with all applicable 
HIPAA-HITECH laws: 

(3) Aggregate the PHI and/or aggregate the PHI with that of other data 
for the purpose of providing JPA and County with data analyses 
related to the Underlying Agreement, or any other purpose, 
financial or otherwise, as requested by JPA and the County. 

(4) Not disclose PHI without first notifying and receiving approval from 
the JPA and/or County. 

C. The Business Associate agrees that it will neither use nor disclose PHI it 
receives from any other business associate, except as permitted or 
required by this Amendment, or as required by law, or as otherwise 
permitted by law. 

3. Obligations of the Business Associate.  In connection with its use of PHI 
disclosed to the Business Associate, the Business Associate agrees to: 
A. Use or disclose PHI only as permitted or required by this Amendment or 

as required by law. 
B. Use reasonable and appropriate safeguards to prevent use or disclosure 



 

 
 21  

of PHI other than as provided for by this Amendment and applicable laws. 

C. To the extent practical, mitigate any harmful effect that is known to the 
Business Associate of a use or disclosure of PHI by the Business 
Associate in violation of this Amendment and applicable laws. 

D. Report to JPA any use or disclosure of PHI not provided for by this 
Amendment of which the Business Associate becomes aware. 

E. Require sub-contractors or agents to whom the Business Associate 
provides PHI to agree and sign a Business Associate agreement.  

F. Use appropriate administrative, technical and physical safeguards to 
prevent inappropriate use or disclosure of PHI created or received. 

G. Obtain and maintain knowledge of the applicable laws and regulations 
related to HIPAA and HITECH, as may be amended from time to time. 

H. Business Associate will notify said party in writing within sixty (60) days 
where PHI may have been intentionally, and/or inadvertently disclosed 
and if such disclosure has been secured. 

I. Business Associate and their personnel acknowledge that all collected 
PHI needs to be secured at all times. 

4. PHI Access, Amendment and Disclosure Accounting. 
   The Business Associate agrees to: 

A. Provide access, at the request of JPA, within five (5) days, to PHI in a 
Designated Record Set, to the JPA, or to an Individual as directed by the 
JPA. 

B. To make any amendment(s) to PHI in a Designated Record Set that the 
JPA directs or agrees to at the request of JPA or an Individual within sixty 
(60) days of the request of JPA. 

C. To assist the JPA in meeting its disclosure accounting under HIPAA: 

(1) The Business Associate agrees to document such disclosures of 
PHI and information related to such disclosures as would be 
required for the JPA to respond to a request by an Individual for an 
accounting of disclosures of PHI. 

(2) The JPA agrees to provide to JPA or an Individual, within sixty (60) 
days, information collected in accordance with this section to permit 
the JPA to respond to a request by an Individual for an accounting 
of disclosures of PHI. 

(3)   The Business Associate shall have available for the JPA the 
information required by this section for the six (6) years preceding 
the JPA’s request for information.  



 

 
 22  

D. Make available to the JPA, the Business Associate’s internal practices, 
books and records relating to the use of and disclosure of PHI for 
purposes of determining the Business Associate’s compliance with the 
Privacy Rule, subject to any applicable legal restrictions. 

E. Within thirty (30) days of receiving a written request from JPA, make 
available any and all information necessary for JPA to make an 
accounting of disclosures of JPA PHI by the Business Associate. 

F. Within thirty (30) days of receiving a written request from JPA, incorporate 
any amendments or corrections to the PHI in accordance with the Privacy 
Rule in the event that the PHI in the Business Associate’s possession 
constitutes a Designated Record Set. 

G. Not make any disclosure of PHI that JPA would be prohibited from 
making. 

5. Obligations of JPA.   
A.  JPA agrees that it will make its best effort to promptly notify the Business 

Associate in writing of any restrictions on the use and disclosure of PHI 
agreed to by JPA that may affect the Business Associate’s ability to 
perform its obligations under the Underlying Agreement, or this 
Amendment. 
 

B.  JPA agrees that it will make its best effort to promptly notify the Business 
Associate in writing of any changes in, or revocation of, permission by 
any Individual to use or disclose PHI, if such changes or revocation may 
affect the Business Associate’s ability to perform its obligations under 
the Underlying Agreement, of this Amendment. 

C.  JPA agrees that it will make its best effort to promptly notify the Business 
Associate in writing of any known limitation(s) in its notice of privacy 
practices to the extent that such limitation may affect the Business 
Associate’s use of disclosure of PHI. 

D. JPA shall not request the Business Associate to use or disclose PHI in 
any manner that would not be permissible under the Privacy Rule if done 
by JPA, except as may be expressly permitted by the Privacy Rule. 

E. JPA will obtain any authorizations necessary for the use or disclosure of 
PHI, so that the Business Associate can perform its obligations under 
this Amendment and/or the Underlying Agreement. 

6.  Terms and Termination.   
This Amendment shall commence upon the Effective Date and terminate upon 
the termination of the Underlying Agreement, as provided therein. Upon 
termination of this Agreement for any reason, the Business Associate, with 
respect to protected health information received from the County or JPA or 
created, maintained, or received by the Business Associate on their behalf, 
shall:  



 

 
 23  

A. Retain only that protected health information which is necessary for the 
Business Associate to continue its proper management and administration 
or to carry out its legal responsibilities; 

B. Return or destroy the remaining protected health information that the 
Business Associate still maintains in any form; 

C. Continue to use appropriate safeguards and comply with Subpart C of 45 
CFR part 164 with respect to electronic protected health information to 
prevent use or disclosure of the protected health information, other than as 
provided for in this Section, for as long as the Business Associate retains 
the protected health information; 

D. Not use or disclose the protected health information retained by the Business 
Associate when it is no longer needed by the Business Associate for its 
proper management and administration or to carry out its legal 
responsibilities. 

7. Amendment to Indemnity. 
The Business Associate shall indemnify and hold harmless all Agencies, 
Districts, Special Districts and Departments of the County and the JPA, their 
respective directors, officers, Board of Supervisors, elected and appointed 
officials, employees, agents and representatives from any liability whatsoever, 
based or asserted upon any services of the Business Associate, its officers, 
employees, subcontractors, agents or representatives arising out of or in any way 
relating to this Amendment, including but not limited to property damage, bodily 
injury, or death or any other element of any kind or nature whatsoever including 
fines, penalties or any other costs and resulting from any reason whatsoever 
arising from the performance of the Business Associate, its officers, agents, 
employees, subcontractors, agents or representatives from this Amendment.  
The Business Associate shall defend, at its sole expense, all costs and fees 
including but not limited to attorney fees, cost of investigation, defense and 
settlements or awards all Agencies, Districts, Special Districts and Departments 
of the County and the JPA, their respective directors, officers, Board of 
Supervisors, elected and appointed officials, employees, agents and 
representatives in any claim or action based upon such alleged acts or 
omissions. 
With respect to any action or claim subject to indemnification herein by the 
Business Associate, the Business Associate shall, at their sole cost, have the 
right to use counsel of their choice and shall have the right to adjust, settle, or 
compromise any such action or claim without the prior consent of JPA; provided, 
however, that any such adjustment, settlement or compromise in no manner 
whatsoever limits or circumscribes the Business Associate’s indemnification to 
JPA as set forth herein.  The Business Associate’s obligation to defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless JPA shall be subject to JPA having given the 
Business Associate written notice within a reasonable period of time of the 
claim or of the commencement of the related action, as the case may be, and 
information and reasonable assistance, at the Business Associate’s expense, 
for the defense or settlement thereof.  The Business Associate’s obligation 
hereunder shall be satisfied when the Business Associate has provided to JPA 



 

 
 24  

the appropriate form of dismissal relieving JPA from any liability for the action or 
claim involved. 

 
The specified insurance limits required in the Underlying Agreement of this 
Amendment shall in no way limit or circumscribe the Business Associate’s 
obligations to indemnify and hold harmless the JPA herein from third party claims 
arising from the issues of this Amendment.   

In the event there is conflict between this clause and California Civil Code 
Section 2782, this clause shall be interpreted to comply with Civil Code 2782.  
Such interpretation shall not relieve the Business Associate from indemnifying 
the JPA to the fullest extent allowed by law.   

In the event there is a conflict between this indemnification clause and an 
indemnification clause contained in the Underlying Agreement of this 
Amendment, this indemnification shall only apply to the subject issues included 
within this Amendment. 

8. Amendment.  The parties agree to take such action as is necessary to amend 
this Amendment from time to time as is necessary for JPA to comply with the 
Privacy Rule and HIPAA generally. 

9. Survival.  The respective rights and obligations of this Amendment shall survive 
the termination or expiration of this Amendment. 

10 Regulatory References.  A reference in this Amendment to a section in the 
Privacy Rule means the section as in effect or as amended. 

11. Conflicts.  Any ambiguity in this Amendment and the Underlying Agreement shall 
be resolved to permit County to comply with the Privacy Rule and HIPAA 
generally. 

12. Except as herein amended, all other parts and sections of this Agreement with 
the Business Associate, shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 25  

 
Appendix B 

 
 

COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES 
 

 
EL DORADO COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY  

AND  
 CAL FIRE/CAMERON PARK FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 
 

1. The Contractor acknowledges and agrees 1) that the JPA’s Master Contract 
with the County is funded from three specific funding sources:  CSA No. 7 
Property Tax, CSA No. 7 Special Tax, and Ambulance Billing revenue; 2) all of 
these funding sources are limited and fluctuate from year to year; 3) there are 
three primary categories of on-going expenditure that must be sustained by CSA 
No. 7 funding: CSA No. 7 administration activities performed by the County, JPA 
ambulance services and ambulance billing/collection services; and, 4) the Master 
Contract is primarily a fixed price Agreement with annual adjustments plus 
standby revenue.  The JPA and Contractor agree that the County shall not fund 
compensation from any other funds or revenues, including but not limited to the 
County’s General Fund.   
 

2. The JPA shall compensate the Contractor on a monthly basis based on actual 
cost with amounts not to exceed those listed in the chart below. 
 

Class 30 Expenses 

Employee Salary 
& Benefits 

Maximum 
Allowance: 
$1,200,000 per 
medic unit 

July 2022 will be compensated at a 
flat rate of $100,000 per unit. 
Beginning with August 2022, 
compensation will be at actual cost 
of the previous months Employee 
Salary & Benefit cost. 
*Exception: If Contractor pre-pays the UAL 
obligation, that payment will be distributed 
over a period not to exceed 12 consecutive 
calendar months. 

 

Class 40 Expenses 

Object Code 
4022: Uniforms 

Maximum 
Allowance: $6,000 
per medic unit 

Compensated at actual cost.  

Object Code 
4304 Agency 
Admin 

$20,000 per 
medic unit 

Compensated annually in July   

Object Code 
4440: 
Rental/Lease 
Buildings 

$18,000 per 
medic unit 

Compensated annually in January  



 

 
 26  

Object 4609 Staff 
Development 

Maximum 
Allowance: $6,000 
per medic unit  

Compensated at actual cost  

Object 4700 
Utilities 

$9,700 per medic 
unit 

Compensated annually in January  

 
3. Invoices submitted for reimbursement must be accompanied with supporting 

documentation including receipts, invoices, personnel rosters and referenced line 
items and are subject to the review and approval of the JPA Executive Director 
or designee. 
 

4. The Contractor agrees to submit a preliminary fiscal year budget to the JPA on 
an annual basis, which will be reviewed and approved by the JPA Finance 
Committee and Board of Directors.     
 

5. The Contractor agrees to submit a monthly Expenditure report to the JPA, 
which will be reviewed by the JPA Finance Committee and  Board of Directors.  
 

6. At any time during the Agreement, in the event that significant circumstances 
beyond the reasonable control of the JPA or Contractor, dramatically increase 
the Contractor’s expenses or decrease JPA revenues, either the JPA or the 
Contractor may request to meet and confer regarding the terms of this 
Agreement.      

 
  

 
 

 
 
 
 



Attachment 13B 

 

 
Resolution No. 2022-25  Page 1 of 3 
 

Resolution No. 2022-25 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CAMERON PARK 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE ADVANCED LIFE SUPPORT 
AMBULANCE AGREEMENT BETWEEN EL DORADO COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES 

AUTHORITY AND CAL FIRE/CAMERON PARK FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 

WHEREAS, the Cameron Park Community Services District is committed to providing 
advanced life support ambulance service by and between CAL FIRE Amador – El Dorado Unit 
(AEU) and the Cameron Park Fire Department (CPFD); and  
 

WHEREAS, the JPA is responsible for providing Advanced Life Support (“ALS”) 
prehospital medical care within its jurisdiction, in compliance with Contract #2298 for 
Prehospital Advanced Life Support, Ambulance and Dispatch Services with the County of El 
Dorado (“Master Contract”); and  

 
WHEREAS, Contractor desires to provide ALS ambulance service in El Dorado County, 

for emergency and non-emergency prehospital calls for service, and routine medical 
transportation; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Contractor, from time to time is requested to provide Standby Services 

for Special Events, such as for an event where spectators and/or participants in the event have a 
potential for illness or injury, or for any situation where an event results in a gathering of 
persons in one general locale, sufficient in numbers, or engaged in an activity, that creates a 
need to have one or more EMS resources at the site as defined by EMS Agency Policy issued by 
the EMS Agency Medical Director; and  

 
WHEREAS, the JPA and the Contractor agree that it is necessary to clearly define all 

expectations and regulations regarding the provision of ALS ambulance service for emergency 
and non-emergency prehospital calls, Standby and Special Event Services and routine medical 
transportation services in the current Contractor Agreement; and  

 
WHEREAS, this Agreement is developed in compliance with the Master Contract with 

the County of El Dorado; and  
 
WHEREAS, Contractor agrees to comply with the requirements of the California Health 

and Safety Code, Division 2.5, Section 1797 et seq.; California Code of Regulations, Title 22, 
Division 9, Chapter 4, Article 7, Section 100167; the County Emergency Medical Service and 
Medical Transportation Ordinance; Contract #2298 for Pre-hospital El Dorado County 
Emergency Services Authority Attachment 2.B.1 2 Advanced Life Support, Ambulance and 
Dispatch Services with the County of El Dorado; the standards of the El Dorado County EMS 
Agency, including but not limited to the County EMS Agency Policy and Procedure Manual, El 
Dorado County Trauma Plan, and applicable agency, local and state statutes, ordinances or 
regulations; and  



Resolution No. 2022-25  Page 2 of 3 
 

 
WHEREAS, the El Dorado County EMS Agency Medical Director, (“EMSA MD”) 

through the County EMS Agency, and as defined in the Master Contract, has the authority to 
develop overall plans, policies, and medical standards to ensure that effective levels of ALS care 
are maintained within the County; and that the EMSA MD has the authority for establishing the 
minimum required medical equipment, medication inventories, and medical protocols, with 
exception to ambulance specifications; and  

 
WHEREAS, the JPA and the Contractor agree that a higher level of medical training 

may be necessary to provide patient care. The JPA may require the Contractor to provide a 
higher standard of medical training than is required by the California Code of Regulations Title 
22; and  

 
WHEREAS, the EMSA MD shall have retrospective, concurrent, and prospective 

medical control including access to all medical information pertinent to data collection, 
evaluation and analysis; and  

 
WHEREAS, County is a Covered Entity, as defined in the Privacy Rule of the Health 

Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Pub. L. No. 104-161 of 1996 ("HIPAA") and 
Contractor is defined as a Business Associate of the County under this law, which requires 
protection of any disclosure of Public Health Information (PHI) pursuant to this Agreement; 
and includes adherence to the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health 
Act (the HITECH Act), as incorporated in the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 
2009, Public Law 111-005; and the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act (the GINA). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF Cameron Park Community 
Services District DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The District hereby resolves to approve the Advanced Life Support Ambulance 
Agreement between the El Dorado County Emergency Services Authority and CAL 
FIRE/ Cameron Park Fire Department. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of Cameron Park Community 

Services District, this 17th day of August 2022, by the following vote: 

 
AYES:   

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

ATTEST: 



Resolution No. 2022-25  Page 3 of 3 
 

 

 

____________________________________ __________________________________ 
Felicity Wood Carlson, President  André Pichly 
Board of Directors     General Manager 



  

Fire Equipment Agreement Addendum August 17, 2022 Page 1 

 Cameron Park 
Community Services District 

 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
DATE:  August 17, 2022 
   
FROM: Dusty Martin, Fire Chief 
     
AGENDA ITEM #14:  ADDENDUM TO THE AGREEMENT FOR MUTUAL AID FIRE 

PROTECTION BETWEEN CALFIRE AND CAMERON PARK 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT TO RENT CAMERON PARK 

FIRE DEPARTMENT EQUIPMENT 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   APPROVE RESOLUTION 2022-22 AND ADDENDUM TO THE 

AGREEMENT FOR MUTUAL AID FIRE PROTECTION 
 
Discussion 
This addendum to the agreement is between CALFIRE Amador El Dorado Unit and 
Cameron Park Fire Department. This is the mechanism for CALFIRE to rent Cameron 
Park Fire Department Equipment. This is an annual agreement.  This item was 
reviewed and discussed at the August 2, 2022, Fire & Emergency Services Committee 
and is before the full Board for approval. 
 
 
Attachment: 
14.A – Addendum to Mutual Aid Agreement 
14.B - Resolution 2022-22 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Attachment 14.A 
 

Addendum to the Agreement for Mutual Aid Fire Protection 
 
 
 

CAL FIRE  
Amador-El Dorado Unit 

and 
Cameron Park CSD Fire Department 

2022 LOCAL OPERATING PLAN  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MIKE BLANKENHEIM 
UNIT CHIEF  

 



Page 2 of 10 

1. IDENTIFICATION 
 
This Operating Plan is an addendum to the Agreement for Mutual Aid Fire Protection by and 
between CAL FIRE Amador - El Dorado Unit hereinafter called AEU, and the Cameron Park 
CSD Fire Department, hereinafter called LOCAL AGENCY, through its duly appointed officers. 
 
2. AUTHORITY  
 
This Annual Operating Plan (AOP) is authorized by CA Health and Safety Code Section13863 
and CAL FIRE Handbook Section 8515.  
 
3. PURPOSE 
 
This document provides operational and administrative guidelines for AEU and the LOCAL 
AGENCY in providing Mutual Aid. Additionally, this document addresses Assistance by Hire 
resources within AEU by:   

 
A. Defining the parameters for reimbursement of local government  fire personnel and 

apparatus for incidents within the purview of AEU, including exclusions and 
exceptions 

B. Establishing the procedure for payment of local fire agency equipment and personnel  
C. Providing a point of contact for payment issues on incidents within AEU. 

 
This agreement does not include resource or overhead orders placed under the California Fire 
Assistance Agreement (CFAA). 
 
4. DEFINITIONS 
 
A.   AGENCY REPRESENTATIVE 
 
An Agency Representative is an individual assigned to an incident from an assisting or 
cooperating agency who has been delegated authority to make decisions on matters affecting 
that agency's participation at the incident.  The Agency Representative is not on direct tactical 
assignment, but is there to assist in coordination efforts 
 
 
B. ASSISTING AGENCY 
 
An agency directly contributing tactical or service resources to another agency. 
 
C. ASSISTANCE BY HIRE 
 
Assistance by hire is the provision of fire suppression resources, by one agency to another, on a 
reimbursement basis. All requests to hire fire protection assistance must be clear and precise 
and shall be recorded by the single ordering point.  
 
 
 



Page 3 of 10 

D. COOPERATING AGENCY:  
 
An agency supplying assistance other than direct tactical or support functions or resources to 
the incident control effort (e.g., American Red Cross, telephone company, etc.). 
 
 
E.   LOCAL RESPONSIBILITY AREA (LRA) 
 
Lands on which neither the State nor the Federal Government has any legal responsibility for 
providing fire protection. 
 
F.   MUTUAL AID 
 
Mutual aid is a reciprocal agreement between two or more fire agencies wherein each agrees to 
assist the other under certain conditions without cost to the requesting agency. Providing mutual 
aid is permissible on the part of the responding agency, based on its ability at the time the aid is 
requested.  
 
The purpose of mutual aid is to ensure rapid attack strength via the nearest available forces 
regardless of source or agency in the interest of economy, to avoid duplication, and to minimize 
the number of large fires, and because no agency can afford an organization that will meet all 
needs. 
 
G.   MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT:  
 
      Written agreement between agencies and/or jurisdictions in which they agree to assist one 
another with like resources and without cost. The mutual aid period, as defined by this 
agreement, shall extend six hours from time of request for fire apparatus, two hours for water 
tenders, and 12 hours for overhead personnel. Eligible resources utilized beyond the mutual aid 
period will become assistance by hire retroactive to the time of the request. 
 
H.   MUTUAL DISPATCH AREAS (MDAs) 
 
Protection units shall coordinate their initial attack response by identifying the "closest forces" 
and agreeing which resources will be automatically dispatched.  All resources in the initial attack 
dispatch will be Mutual Aid. 
 
I.   STATE RESPONSIBILITY AREA (SRA) 
 
The California Board of Forestry and Fire Protection classify areas in which the primary financial 
responsibility for preventing and suppressing fires is that of the State.  CAL FIRE has SRA 
responsibility for the protection of over 31 million acres of California's privately-owned wildlands. 
 
J.   UNIFIED COMMAND 
 
Unified Command is an authority structure in which the role of incident commander is shared by 
two or more individuals, each already having authority in a different responding agency. Unified 
command is one way to carry out command in which responding agencies and/or jurisdictions 

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/National_Incident_Management_System#Command_and_management


Page 4 of 10 

with responsibility for the incident share incident management, by establishing a common set of 
incident objectives and strategies.   

 
5. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
A. ANNUAL OPERATING PLAN (AOP) 
 
The parties to this agreement will meet annually, prior to summer preparedness levels, to review 
the AOP. The AOP will include protection area maps for all parties, lists of principal personnel, 
updated contact information, and the current year Radio Call Plan as issued by the AEU 
Emergency Command Center (Attachment 1).  
 
B. JURISDICTIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
The LOCAL AGENCY has primary responsibility for the protection of life and improvements.  
CAL FIRE has the statutory responsibility for the prevention, suppression, and investigation of 
wildland fires on lands deemed SRA. 
 
C. NOTIFICATIONS 
 
Each party will notify the other party of fires burning in or on or threatening lands or property for 
which the other party has protection responsibility.  
 
D. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
RADIO – communications shall be according to the current year Radio Call Plan as issued by 
the AEU ECC. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE – via USPS or common carrier shall be to the following addresses for 
each of the parties: 
 

CAL FIRE - AEU Cameron Park CSD Fire Department 
2840 Mt. Danaher Rd. 3200 Country Club Dr. 
Camino, CA  95709 Cameron Park, CA. 95682 
  

 
 
TELEPHONE – Please refer to attached contact lists (Attachment 2) for agency personnel or 
functions. 
 
EMAIL -- Please refer to attached contact lists (Attachment 2) for agency personnel or functions 
 
E. CAUSE AND ORIGIN DETERMINATION AND PRESERVATION OF EVIDENCE 
 
Parties will demonstrate diligence in protecting the point and/or area of origin of a fire and any 
and all evidence or potential evidence which may pertain to fire cause.   The CAL FIRE Incident 
Commander or Prevention Bureau has the primary responsibility for origin and cause 



Page 5 of 10 

determination on a SRA incident.  CAL FIRE welcomes the assistance of the local fire agency 
but will maintain primary investigatory responsibility. 
 
F. TRAINING 
 
Parties will advise and attempt to share training opportunities with one another as they apply to 
each party’s mission to further foster good working relations and effectiveness. 
 
G. PRESCRIBED FIRE AND FUELS MANAGEMENT 
 
Parties will advise one another of planned prescribed fire or other fuels management within their 
respective jurisdictions. 
 
H. MODIFICATIONS TO AOP 
 
Any changes, agreed upon during the annual review will result in a letter from CAL FIRE to the 
LOCAL AGENCY memorializing that agreement and any changes therein. A copy of the letter 
will be retained in the official agreement file at AEU.  
 
I.  DURATION OF AGREEMENT 
 
This Annual Operating Plan will be renewed and updated each year.  Both parties retain the 
right to terminate their participation by providing 15 days written notice to the other party. 

 
6. OPERATING PROCEDURES 
 
A.   DISPATCH   

Please refer to the AEU Radio Call Plan for the current year as issued by the AEU ECC 
(See Attachment 1). 

 
B.   INCIDENT COMMAND  
 

VEGETATION FIRES ON SRA 
 

1) CAL FIRE has statutory responsibility for managing vegetation fires in the area 
defined as State Responsibility Area (SRA) regardless of local fire agency boundaries. 

 
2) When a local fire agency Company Officer or Chief Officer is first on scene they 
will normally assume the position of Incident Commander. 
 
3) The first CAL FIRE Company Officer or Chief Officer will contact the IC and determine 
if a change of command is appropriate.  If a change is made, the ECC will be notified and 
an announcement will be made on the Command and Tactical frequencies. 
 
4) When appropriate, a Unified Command or any other organization that is best suited to 
contain and control the fire will be used.  CAL FIRE will continue to have primary 
responsibility for the fire and expenditures against the Emergency Fund.  
 



Page 6 of 10 

5) The Incident Commander (IC) will be responsible for the report on conditions, 
resource ordering, deployment of resources, resource accountability, communication on 
the command and tactical frequencies, and the establishment of an incident command 
post (ICP). 
 
NON-VEGETATION INCIDENTS OR LRA FIRES 
 
1) The local fire agency has primary responsibility for these incidents. 
 
2) If a CAL FIRE Company Officer or Chief Officer is first on scene they will normally 
assume the Incident Command responsibility. 
 
3) The first local fire agency Company Officer or Chief Officer on scene will contact the 
IC and determine if a change of command is appropriate.  If a change is made, the ECC 
will be notified and an announcement will be made on the Command and Tactical 
frequencies. 
 
4) When appropriate, a Unified Command or any other organization that is best suited to 
mitigate the emergency will be used.  The responsible local fire agency (AHJ) will 
continue to have primary responsibility for the incident. 
 
5) The Incident Commander (IC) will be responsible for the report on conditions, 
resource ordering, deployment of resources, resource accountability, communication on 
the command and tactical frequencies, and the establishment of an incident command 
post (ICP). 
 

 
C.   EQUIPMENT ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
Due to operational need, there may be occasions when local government resources will be 
asked to leave their equipment upon release from an incident.  If equipment is left at an incident 
it will be documented on an Incident Replacement Requisition Form FC-315 (see Exhibit A).   
 
The information that is most critical on the form is:  

1) Incident number and name;  
2) Unit name (i.e. Engine 85);  
3) Authorization must be from a CAL FIRE officer (DIVS, OSC or IC) 
4) Date/Time;  
5) Quantity and item description (i.e. 5-100’ lengths of 1 ½” hose, etc.).   

 
A copy should be retained by the I.C. and the resource leaving the equipment. 
 
Each respective district is encouraged to mark their equipment so CAL FIRE can return the 
exact equipment which was left on the incident.  As an example, if a district leaves new hose on 
an incident, and it is not marked, they may not get new hose returned to them.  CAL FIRE 
expects that non-traditional wildland suppression equipment not be left at an incident unless 
specifically requested by the IC or designee.   
 



Page 7 of 10 

 
D.   CAL FIRE PAYMENT FOR LOCAL FIRE AGENCIES – RESOURCES AND 
PERSONNEL 
 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
1.   All fuel, lubricants, normal wear and tear will be the owning agencies' responsibility. 

 
2.   All assistance beyond the specified mutual aid period will be assistance by hire and will 
be reimbursed RETROACTIVELY for the full period from the time of initial dispatch until return 
to quarters.  Reimbursement for Emergency Apparatus refurbishment and rehab may be 
approved by the Incident Commander, up to a maximum of 2 hours, as appropriate. 

 
3.   CAL FIRE will normally pay for one Company Officer and two Firefighters per engine 
unless ordered differently.  During initial attack local staffing standards may be only one 
Company Officer and one Firefighter; this is the minimum staffing level CAL FIRE will pay for.  
CAL FIRE will pay the actual staffing level on the assigned apparatus, from two to four persons. 

 
4.   CAL FIRE will pay for the actual staffing level on assigned water tenders, up to two 

persons. 
 

5.   Emergency apparatus shall meet minimum FIRESCOPE ICS type standards, when    
applicable and shall be outfitted with the minimum ICS complement.  
  

 
6.   CAL FIRE cannot hire equipment which was received through the Federal Excess 

program or from Cal OES.  CAL FIRE can pay for staffing of these apparatus.   
 

7.  It shall be the responsibility of the jurisdiction sending emergency personnel to ensure that 
such personnel are provided protective clothing and equipment as required by the most current 
version of the rules found in California Code of Regulations, Title 8, Section 3410, Article 10.1, 
Section 3401, et seq  
 

 
8. Personnel and apparatus time calculations are as follows: 

 Apparatus 
• Cal OES rates are used and there is a 16-hour maximum allowable charge 

per 24-hour period from time of dispatch 
 Personnel 

• Personnel time will be reimbursed at the Cal OES rate 
• If an agency has an approved Salary Survey on file with Cal OES, then 

those rates will be used.  The Salary Survey must be on file prior 
to hire. 

 
9. By providing personnel, apparatus, and equipment, the LOCAL AGENCY attests to their 

safety, training, competency, complement, and general readiness.  Personnel filling 
engine company or tactical water tender positions shall be certified at the appropriate 



Page 8 of 10 

level per Wildland Fire Qualification NWCG 310-1 Sub System Guide, or the California 
Incident Command Certification System (CICCS).  

 
           Personnel filling overhead positions shall meet the training and experience requirements 

established for the ICS position to be filled (Reference: NWCG 310-1 Sub System Guide 
or CICCS).  

 
 
E. PARAMETERS FOR REIMBURSEMENT 
 

1. Move up and cover assignments behind CAL FIRE resources. 
 

• Meals will normally be provided using normal station provisions 
unless otherwise specified by a CAL FIRE officer. 

 
• Replacement fuel will be provided as needed. 

 
2. Resources assigned to specific preplanned operations in the Unit such as lightning plans 

and special staffing plans. 
 

3. Water tenders used on an incident or for coverage beyond the 2 hour mutual aid period. 
 

4. Engines used on an incident or for coverage beyond the 6 hour mutual aid period. 
 

5. Overhead working beyond the 12 hour mutual aid period when requested by the IC. 
 

6. Resources requested to respond outside the boundaries of the mutual aid agreement 
(normally outside the Unit). 

 
7. Local resources being used in lieu of CAL FIRE resources due to draw-down or other 

operational deficiencies. 
 

8. Local Government Resources used beyond a 12 hour period for planned need 
should be converted over to CFAA and a Cal OES Agency Representative should 
be requested. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 9 of 10 

F. Exclusions 
 
CAL FIRE will NOT normally pay for resources and overhead from the local agency having 
jurisdiction (AHJ) when used on fires within their district performing their primary responsibilities 
of protecting life and property.  
 
EXCEPTIONS:   
 
When local resources and overhead are being used in lieu of CAL FIRE resources due to 
operational deficiencies (draw-down, etc.), assistance by hire may be considered.  This 
agreement will be mutually established by the CAL FIRE Incident Commander and the local fire 
department agency administrator, and documented on the Shift Ticket.   
 
District owned water tenders may become assistance by hire if they are used in lieu of the rental 
of private equipment.  All provisions for such use will be made between the CAL FIRE Incident 
Commander and the local fire department agency administrator. 
 
7.  PAYMENT PROCEDURE 
 
A. Local Fire Agency: 

 
1) Be sure a current copy of your agency’s Cal OES Salary Survey is on file with the 

CAL FIRE Administrative Officer at Camino (prior to the hiring of apparatus or 
personnel) if you are requesting rates other than the base Cal OES Rates. 

 
2) Prior to release from an incident the Local Agency equipment/personnel shall obtain a 

Shift Ticket (CAL FIRE 297) (Exhibit B) signed by the IC or CAL FIRE Officer.   
 

3) Supply a copy of the incident FC-34 with the resource’s activity highlighted 
(particularly the start and end times of the resource’s assignment). 

 
4) Supply a completed CAL FIRE-20 Contractor Certification Clauses for Service (Exhibit 

D) to the invoice.  Only one copy is needed for each season. 
 

5) Supply the above documentation to the local CAL FIRE Battalion Chief.  CAL FIRE 
will generate the Local Government Activity Invoice package for review and signature. 

. 
6)  Please make a copy for your records.  

 
7) Submit the signed invoice and all required attachments to the CAL FIRE Unit 

Headquarters at Camino within 45 days of completion of the assignment. 
 
Payment normally takes sixty (60) days after receipt of invoice.   
 
If you have any questions, contact the Administrative Assistant Chief (530) 708-2702. 

 
 
 



Page 10 of 10 

Exhibit A:   FC-315 Incident Replacement Requisition 
Exhibit B:  CAL FIRE 297 Shift Ticket 
Exhibit C:   AEU/Local Government Activity Invoice 
Exhibit D:   CAL FIRE-20 Contractor Certification Clauses for Services 
Attachment 1: AEU Radio Call Plan (current year) 
Attachment 2: CAL FIRE Personnel Roster and Contacts List 
    
 
 
 
 
California Department of Forestry 
And Fire Protection - AEU 

Cameron Park Community Services 
District 

 
 
Mike Blankenheim                          Date 
Unit Chief 

 
 
Felicity Wood Carlson                     Date 
President, Board of Directors 

 



Attachment 14B 

 

 
Resolution No. 2022-22  Page 1 of 2 
 

Resolution No. 2022-22 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CAMERON PARK 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE ADDENDUM TO THE 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE EL DORADO COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES 

AUTHORITY AND CAL FIRE/CAMERON PARK FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 

WHEREAS, the Cameron Park Community Services District is committed to mutual aid 
fire protection by and between CAL FIRE Amador – El Dorado Unit (AEU) and the Cameron 
Park Fire Department (CPFD); and  
 

WHEREAS, an addendum to the agreement for mutual aid fire protection will further 
articulate operational and administrative guidelines for AEU and CPFD in providing mutual 
aid; and 
 

WHEREAS, the addendum includes defining the parameters for reimbursement of local 
government fire personnel and apparatus for incidents within the purview of AEU, including 
exclusions and exceptions; and  
 

WHEREAS, the addendum includes establishing the procedure for payment of local fire 
agency equipment and personnel; and 

 
WHEREAS, the addendum includes providing a point of contact for payment issues on 

incidents within AEU. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF Cameron Park Community 
Services District DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The District hereby resolves to approve the Addendum to the Agreement between the El 
Dorado County Emergency Services Authority and CAL FIRE/ Cameron Park Fire 
Department. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of Cameron Park Community 

Services District, this 17th day of August 2022, by the following vote: 

 
AYES:   

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

ATTEST: 

 



Resolution No. 2022-22  Page 2 of 2 
 

 

____________________________________ __________________________________ 
Felicity Wood Carlson, President  André Pichly 
Board of Directors     General Manager 



 

 
 
 
 
First Responder Fee Ordinance 2022-01                           August 3, 2022 Page 1 of 3 
and Resolution 2022-23 
 

  Cameron Park 
Community Services District 

 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
 
DATE:  August 17, 2022 
 
FROM:  André Pichly, General Manager 
 Dusty Martin, Fire Chief  
 
AGENDA ITEM #16:  PUBLIC HEARING - SECOND READING OF 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-01 WHICH ESTABLISHES THE 
FIRST RESPONDER FEE ORDINANCE, APPROVE AND 
ADOPT ORDIANCE NO. 2022-01; APPROVE 
RESOLUTION 2022-23 AUTHORIZING THE FIRST 
RESPONDER FEE 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   Provide the Second Reading of Ordinance No. 2022-01 

establishing First Responder Fees for Cameron Park, hold a 
Public Hearing, and move to approve and adopt, and 
approve Resolution No. 2022-23 

  
BUDGET ACCOUNT:    FIRE DEPARTMENT, BUDGET UNIT 3000    
BUDGET IMPACT:  Estimated at $100,000.00 – Ability to Offset Costs of First 

Responder Services that include Medical Aid  
 
Recommended Action: 

• Second reading of the Ordinance 
• Hold Public Hearing 
• Adopt Ordinance 2022-01 establishing First Responder Fees for Cameron Park 
• Approve Resolution No. 2022-23, Authority to Charge fees for providing first 

responder Advanced Life Support Paramedic (ALS) 
 
 
 



 

First Responder Fee Ordinance 2022-01                           August 17, 2022 Page 2 of 3 
and Resolution 2022-23 
 

Background:   
A First Responder User Fee, authorized under Section 13916 of the California Health 
and Safety Code, is cost recovery for providing first responder Advanced Life Support 
Paramedic (ALS) services to the community. 
 
On February 17, 2021, the Cameron Park CSD Board of Directors, approved resolution 
2021-01, an agreement between the Cameron Park CSD and DTA, to complete a First 
Responder Fee Study.  
 
The First Responder Fee is designed to cover enhanced services of Advanced Life 
Support on engines. It is only charged on medical aids where engine personnel assist in 
patient care.      
 
The fee is developed by an average of hourly costs for crew members, equipment costs, 
administrative and station support costs, multiplied by the average time spent on scene 
(including enroute and return time) of medical aids by first responders, as specifically 
outlined in the Nexus Study prepared for the CSD, by DTA Consulting. 
 
On March 8, 2022, a final report was presented to the Fire and Emergency Services 
Committee for review and discussion.  The Board of Directors approved the DTA First 
Responder Fee Analysis at the March 16, 2022, regular board meeting. 
 
The Board of Directors held a public hearing for the first reading of Ordinance 2022-01 
at its August 3, 2022, special meeting of the Board of Directors.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
The Nexus Study prepared by DTA indicates that a fee of $213.75 (rounded to $214) per 
engine response to medical aids, should be charged to recoup the costs.   
 
Staff recommended that if the First Responder Fee is implemented, it be reviewed on an 
annual basis with the Fiscal Year Budget development process in order to determine 
whether the fee continues to be appropriate, meets its intended goals, and conforms to 
the mission of the Cameron Park Community Services District. 
 
Staff also recommended that the collection of the First Responder Fee be conducted in a 
manner where patients, who have a demonstrated inability to pay the fee, qualify for a 
partial or full fee waiver through the CSD Board, to which the Board agreed. 
 



 

First Responder Fee Ordinance 2022-01                           August 17, 2022 Page 3 of 3 
and Resolution 2022-23 
 

Staff also recommended that a fee schedule for medical supplies used on calls be 
created to enable the CSD to recoup these costs.  The Board of Directors directed staff to 
draft a First Responder Fee Ordinance and bring it back for readings and adoption. 
 
Once adopted, a summary or the full text of Ordinance 2022-01 will be published in a 
newspaper of general circulation within 15-days after the adoption date with the names 
of those Board members voting for or against the ordinance and shall be posted in the 
District office.  The Ordinance will go into effect 30-days after it has been adopted. 
 
CONCLUSION: 
The First Responder Fee Ordinance should achieve the Board’s intention to recover costs 
associated with calls for medical aid from the individual(s) benefiting from that medical aid 
provided by the Cameron Park Fire Department.   
 
 
Attachments: 
16.A – Ordinance No. 2022-01 
16.B – Resolution No. 2022-23 
 



Page 1 of 2 
Ordinance 2022-01 First Responder Fee

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-01

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
ESTABLISHING AND ADOPTING A DISTRICT SCHEDULE OF FIRST RESPONDER 

SERVICE FEE 

The Board of Directors ("the Board") of the Cameron Park Community Services District of El 

Dorado County, State of California ("the District") hereby ordains as follows:

Section I. Purpose and Intent: Pursuant to California Health and Safety Code section 13916 et seq., the 

District is authorized to charge and collect fees to cover the costs of any service which the District 

provides or the costs of enforcing any regulation for which the fee is charged. It is the purpose and 

intent of this Ordinance to establish and impose District-wide fees for the delivery of emergency 

medical services by a fire apparatus of the Cameron Park Fire Department to augment the funding of 

paramedic fire support services and to upgrade facilities to meet community needs.

Section II. Fee Schedule: The Board engaged the firm of DTA to analyze a fee study to 

determine that the fee schedule reflects the reasonable costs, including staff time, for 

providing advanced and basic life support services throughout the District. The Board held 

public hearings on the proposed first responder fee of $213.75 (subject to increases for 

annual inflation) on August 3, 2022, and August 17, 2022, where the Board heard and 
considered any objections or protests to the proposed fee schedule. The District hereby 

adopts the fee schedule generated by DTA, pursuant to First Responder Fee report dated November 
29, 2021, and incorporated herein by reference. The fees incorporated herein shall be adjusted 
annually for inflation effective each fiscal year. This Ordinance shall supersede any prior 

schedule of emergency medical services fees within the District. 

Section III. Limited Amendment: If any section or attachment of this Ordinance or portion thereof is 
held invalid or unenforceable by any court and such judgment becomes final, then that section may be 

amended by the District's Board by a majority vote to conform to the judgment of such court, provided 
such amendment is consistent with purpose and intent of this Ordinance. 

Section IV. Effective Date and Publication: This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after 
its adoption. The Cameron Park Board Secretary is directed to publish this Ordinance as adopted 

in a newspaper of general circulation in the District. In lieu of publication of the full text of the 

Ordinance within fifteen (15) days after its passage, a summary of the Ordinance may be published 

at least five (5) days prior to and fifteen (15) days after adoption by the District Board and a certified 

copy shall be posted in the office of the District, and Cameron Park Fire Department Office, 

pursuant to Government Code Sections 25120 through 25132.

Attachment 16A



Page 2 of 2 
Ordinance 2022-01 First Responder Fee

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Cameron Park Community 

Services District at a regularly scheduled meeting on the 17th day of August, 2022 by the

following vote of said Board: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ATTEST: 

__________________________  

Director Felicity Wood Carlson 
Board President  

__________________________ 

Andre Pichly, General Manager 
Board Secretary 



Attachment 16.B 

 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Resolution No. 2022-23 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
EXERCISES ITS STATUORY AUTHORITY TO ESTABLISH AND ADOPT A 

DISTRICT SCHEDULE OF A FIRST RESPONDER SERVICE FEE  
August 17, 2022 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Cameron Park Community Services District (DISTRICT) has the 
authority pursuant to Section 13916 et seq., of the California Health and Safety Code, to charge 
and collect fees to cover the costs of any service which the District provides or the costs of 
enforcing any regulation for which the fee is charged; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is the purpose and intent of this Ordinance to establish and impose 

District-wide fees for the delivery of emergency medical services by a fire apparatus of the 
Cameron Park Fire Department to augment the funding of paramedic fire support services and to 
upgrade facilities to meet community needs, and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board commissioned and approved to a fee study to analyze and 
determine that the fee schedule reflects the reasonable costs, including staff time, for providing 
advanced and basic life support services throughout the District, and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board held public hearings on the proposed first responder fee of 

$213.75 (subject to increases for annual inflation) on August 3, 2022, and August 17, 2022, 
where the Board heard and considered any objections or protests to the proposed fee schedule.  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Cameron Park Community Services 
District resolves as follows: 

 
1. The District hereby resolves to adopt the Cameron Park Community Services District 

First Responder Fee, which shall be adjusted annually for inflation effective each fiscal 
year. The Ordinance shall supersede any prior schedule of emergency medical services 
fees within the District. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Cameron Park Community 

Services District at a meeting on the 17th day of August 2022, by the following vote of said 
Board: 

 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 



Resolution No. 2022-23  Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________  ______________________________ 
Director Felicity Wood Carlson, President   André Pichly, General Manager 
Board of Directors      Secretary to the Board 
 



Page 1 of 2 

 Cameron Park 
Community Services District 

Agenda Transmittal 

DATE:  

FROM: AGENDA 

ITEM #17: 

August 17, 2022  

Christina Greek, Finance/HR Officer 

FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 FINAL BUDGETS FOR GENERAL

FUND 01 AND CC&R FUND 02  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution 2022-26 

INTRODUCTION

The Board of Directors approved a Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-23 in 
June 2022.  This report summarizes changes from the Preliminary to Final Budgets for the 
General Fund 01 and CC&R Fund 02 that require changes. By law, the annual Final 
Budget must be approved by September 1st.  Staff intends to present any necessary 
adjustments at Mid-Year (December-January) for approval by the Board of Directors. 
Staff anticipates bringing FY 2021-22 unaudited actuals in September.   

BUDGET AND ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

The Final Budget was taken to the B&A Committee on July 12, 2022. A balanced budget 
was presented. At the same meeting the need to establish a reserve balance was also 
expressed and that there was sufficient funds in our Fund 01 fund balance to set aside 
some money to start building up these reserves. President Carlson directed staff to put a 
place holder of $100,000 in transfer to reserve for the 2022/23 FY to come back to at the 
end of year and transfer if we are still comfortably able to do so.

DISCUSSION 
General Fund 01 (Operations Budget) 
The Final Budget includes expenditures of $7,042,901 with offsetting revenues, including 
Property Tax allocations, of $7,142,901. This balance of the expenditures and 
revenues includes a transfer to reserves of $100,000 out of fund balance at the end of the 
year if funds allow.  Changes made to balance the budget were:

*Increased property tax revenue from 3% up to 4.5%
*Addition of First Responder Fee revenue
*Slight increase to rental fees (fee increases coming to the BOD soon)
* 4th Quarter Franchise fees received so the additional funds were also factored in to be received
for the 2022/23 FY



Proposed Final FY22-23 Budget August 17, 2022 Page 2 of 2 

C&R Fund 02 
The Final Budget includes expenditures of $129,001 with offsetting revenues of 
$112,350. This budgeted deficit is consistent with previous budgets. Due to an increase 
in ARC applications staff is adding a position to assist the CC&R officer. 

CONCLUSION 
Over the past two fiscal years, staff worked very hard to analyze District operations and 
to provide a basis for a long-term sustainable budget.   The District’s budget will continue 
to evolve and change, as evidenced by the current COVID-19 pandemic.   
For FY 2022-23, staff is providing a balanced budget that is continuing the 
District’s essential and priority programs and services.   

Attachments:  

17A – Cameron Park Community District FY2022-22 Fund 01 & Fund 02 Final Budget 
Reports 
17B-Resolution 2022-26



Cameron Park Community Services District

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Unposted Transactions Included In Report

01 - General Fund

From 7/1/2022 Through 6/30/2023

Budget - Final
FY 22/23 Total 

Operating Revenue

Property Taxes 4110 4,788,564.00 

Franchise Fees 4113 220,000.00 

Fire Marshall Plan Review 4132 77,000.00 

Tuition Fees/Revenue 4142 0.00 

Recreation Program Revenue 4154 150,000.00 

Instructor Program Revenue 4155 50,000.00 

Transfer In 4165 73,837.00 

Special Events 4170 2,000.00 

Lake Entries - Daily (Kiosk) 4180 40,000.00 

Annual Passes (Lake/Pool Combo) 4181 65,500.00 

Picnic Site Rentals 4182 6,000.00 

Assembly Hall & Classroom 
Rentals

4185 30,000.00 

Gym Rentals 4186 23,000.00 

Pool Rental Fees 4187 101,500.00 

Sports Field Rentals 4190 21,000.00 

Donations 4250 0.00 

Sponsorships 4255 2,500.00 

JPA Reimbursable 4260 1,212,000.00 

Fire Apparatus Equip Rental 4262 15,000.00 

Reimbursement/Refund 4400 47,700.00 

Weed Abatement 4410 14,300.00 

Interest Income 4505 1,000.00 

Other Income 4600 2,000.00 

First Responder Fee 4602 100,000.00 

Grant - CCI 4605 0.00 

Total Operating Revenue 7,042,901.00 

Expenditures

Salaries - Perm. 5000 923,694.00 

Salaries - Seasonal 5010 109,068.00 

Overtime 5020 11,966.00 

In Lieu Benefits Stipend 5120 10,000.00 

Health Benefit 5130 145,861.00 

Retiree Health Benefit 5135 111,317.00 

Dental Insurance 5140 13,262.00 

Vision Insurance 5150 2,003.00 

CalPERS Employer Retirement 5160 295,567.00 

CalPERS 457 5161 0.00 

Worker's Compensation 5170 42,262.00 

FICA/Medicare Employer 
Contribution

5180 29,061.00 

UI/TT Contribution 5190 10,603.00 

Advertising/Marketing 5209 16,000.00 

Agriculture 5215 20,400.00 

Audit/Accounting 5220 26,000.00 

Bank Charge 5221 14,400.00 

Clothing/Uniforms 5230 6,250.00 

Computer Software 5231 36,622.00 

Computer Hardware 5232 6,750.00 

Date: 8/12/22 01:57:54 AM Page: 1

Attachment 17A



Cameron Park Community Services District

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Unposted Transactions Included In Report

01 - General Fund

From 7/1/2022 Through 6/30/2023

Budget - Final
FY 22/23 Total 

Contractual Services 5235 5,000.00 

Contractual - Provider Services - 
FIRE

5236 4,264,550.00 

Contract Under Utilization 5237 (250,000.00)

Contract Services - Other 5240 111,202.00 

Director Compensation 5250 16,800.00 

EDC Department Agency 5260 4,500.00 

Educational Materials 5265 3,450.00 

Elections 5270 10,000.00 

Equipment-Minor/Small Tools 5275 15,500.00 

Fire & Safety Supplies 5285 4,850.00 

Fire Prevention & Inspection 5290 1,800.00 

Fire Turnout Gear 5295 30,000.00 

Fire- Intern paid 5296 11,800.00 

Food 5300 2,950.00 

Fuel 5305 53,500.00 

Government Fees/Permits 5310 29,900.00 

Janitorial / HH Supplies 5315 33,200.00 

Instructors 5316 30,000.00 

Insurance 5320 206,710.00 

Legal Services 5335 10,000.00 

Maint. - Vehicle Supplies 5340 500.00 

Maint. - Buildings 5345 24,400.00 

Maint. - Equipment 5350 33,800.00 

Maint. - Grounds 5355 46,150.00 

Maint. - Radio/Phones 5360 2,000.00 

Maint. - Tires & Tubes 5365 12,600.00 

Maint. - Vehicle 5370 32,700.00 

Memberships/Subscriptions 5380 12,200.00 

Mileage Reimbursement 5385 3,900.00 

Miscellaneous 5395 500.00 

Office Supplies/Expense 5400 8,450.00 

Pool Chemicals 5405 31,500.00 

Postage 5410 4,000.00 

Printing 5415 550.00 

Professional Services 5420 20,683.00 

Program Supplies 5421 13,000.00 

Publications & Legal Notices 5425 450.00 

Radios 5430 1,000.00 

Rent/Lease - Equipment 5440 2,100.00 

Staff Development 5455 25,500.00 

Phones/internet 5470 46,900.00 

Utilities - Water 5490 50,500.00 

Utilities - Gas 5491 93,500.00 

Utilities - Electric/Solar 5492 136,200.00 

Cal Fire In Kind Purchases 5501 4,000.00 

Transfer Out 7000 9,020.00 

Transfer to Reserve 7001 100,000.00 

Total Expenditures 7,142,901.00 

Net Revenue Over Expenditures (100,000.00)

Date: 8/12/22 01:57:54 AM Page: 2



Cameron Park Community Services District

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Unposted Transactions Included In Report

02 - CC&R

From 7/1/2022 Through 6/30/2023

Budget - Final
FY 22/23 Total 

Operating Revenue

Property Taxes 4110 250.00 

Special Assessments 4135 81,600.00 

Arc Review Fees 4140 30,000.00 

Interest Income 4505 500.00 

Total Operating Revenue 112,350.00 

Expenditures

Salaries - Perm. 5000 75,177.00 

Health Benefit 5130 10,310.00 

Dental Insurance 5140 750.00 

Vision Insurance 5150 137.00 

CalPERS Employer Retirement 5160 4,768.00 

Worker's Compensation 5170 494.00 

FICA/Medicare Employer 
Contribution

5180 1,847.00 

UI/TT Contribution 5190 320.00 

Advertising/Marketing 5209 300.00 

Bank Charge 5221 5,000.00 

Clothing/Uniforms 5230 200.00 

Computer Software 5231 5,000.00 

Contract Services - Other 5240 6,500.00 

Food 5300 200.00 

Fuel 5305 1,000.00 

Legal Services 5335 10,000.00 

Maint. - Equipment 5350 200.00 

Maint. - Vehicle 5370 450.00 

Office Supplies/Expense 5400 300.00 

Postage 5410 200.00 

Printing 5415 250.00 

Professional Services 5420 98.00 

Publications & Legal Notices 5425 300.00 

Rent/Lease - Equipment 5440 200.00 

Phones/internet 5470 5,000.00 

Total Expenditures 129,001.00 

Net Revenue Over Expenditures (16,651.00)

Date: 8/12/22 06:18:12 PM Page: 1



Attachment 17B 
 

RESOLUTION No. 2022-26 
of the Board of Directors  

of the Cameron Park Community Services District 
August 17, 2022 

 
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES 

DISTRICT FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 BUDGET 
 

WHEREAS, a preliminary Fiscal Year 2022-23 Budget was adopted by this Board 
on June 15, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, the Budget & Administration Committee reviewed the proposed 
Final Fiscal Year 2022-23 Budget; and 

WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2022-23 Budget is due to the County of El Dorado by 
September 1, 2022;  

NOW THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the District adopts Attachment 14A 
attached to this resolution and made part therein as the Cameron Park Community 
Services Fiscal Year 2022-23 Budget. 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Cameron Park 
Community Services District at a regularly scheduled meeting held on the 17th day of 
August 2022 by the following vote of said Board: 

AYES:   

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Director Felicity Wood Carlson, President André Pichly, General Manager 
Board of Directors     Secretary to the Board 



  

Page 1 of 3 
 

 Cameron Park 
Community Services District 

 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
DATE:  August 17, 2022  
  
FROM: Christina Greek, Finance/HR Officer 
     
AGENDA ITEM #18: FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 BUDGETS FOR FUND 03 QUIMBY, FUND 05 

FIRE TRAINING, FUND 74 SUMMER SPECTACULAR, FUND 82 

FACILITIES RESERVE   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  APPROVE RESOLUTION 2022-27 

 
INTRODUCTION 
The Board of Directors approved a Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-23 in 
June 2022.  This report summarizes special and reserve fund budgets for approval. 
 
BUDGET AND ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 
These budgets were presented to the Budget and Administration Committee on August 
2, 2022. A member of the committee requested we ensure that the Quimby suggestions 
were within the scope of what the funds could be used for, and we consulted legal counsel 
and were insured that they were in fact being used correctly. 
 
DISCUSSION 
Quimby Fund 03  
 
The proposed budget for Fund 03 includes: 

1.   Funds to replace the restroom roof at Rasmussen Park. The lowest bid to perform the work 
was $10,864. An additional 10% to replace any unforeseen dry rot on the roof.  

2.   The decking on the observation deck at Cameron Park Lake is worn out. The 2X6 Lumber 
needs to be replaced. District staff can replace the lumber this winter. This is a best guess 
estimate. The condition of the dry rot underneath the 2X6 is unknown currently.  

3.    Purchase new fountains for the inlets at Cameron Park Lake. The old fountains are worn 
out. The new fountains will need to be moved further out in the lake. The original location 
is to shallow and will not allow for larger fountains to be installed. Staff has not had a 



Proposed FY22-23 Budget Funds 03,05,74& 82 August 17, 2022 Page 2 of 3 
 

chance to price out moving the electrical further down the lake shoreline. The cost is a best 
guess estimate. 

 
Fire Training Fund 05 
The Fire Training captain Shawn Schmidt put together the budget for the 22/23 Fire 
training fund to meet the needs of the program.  
Fund 74 Summer Spectacular-Special Events 
Starting the 22/23 FY we have implemented a fund to track all revenues and expenditures 
for the Summer Spectacular. This event is meant to financially sustain itself and this will 
help staff to ensure the funds raised are being used for this event and if there is a cost 
savings and additional revenues are received, they can go to fund future events.  
 
 
Fund 82 Facilities Reserve 
At the direction of Board of Directors the Community Center settlement funds went into 
their own reserve fund to allow for the appropriate projects to take place. The budget for 
22/23 is as follows: 
 

1. Roof Repairs - $10,000-The roof repairs will be performed by Cal Vintage Roofing. The 
district has already solicited quotes from 3 roofing companies to perform work that was 
called out during the warranty settlement. There may be future expenses to the roof until 
it is time to have the roof completely replaced. 
 

2.   Repair Front Entrance- $93,947- The District is working on obtaining a third bid to repair 
the water damage to the front main entrance. A scope of work has been sent to several 
companies. The lowest bid the district has received thus far is $85,447. 10% was added for 
any unforeseen issues. The scope of work was created by the law firm who performed a 
detailed investigation of the Community Center. 

 
 
CONCLUSION 
For FY 2022-23, staff is providing a budget based on the needs for each fund found 
necessary. Some of the Funds have a balance that has rolled over from previous years and 
that is why not all funds balance to $0 net revenues over expenditures. 
 



Proposed FY22-23 Budget Funds 03,05,74& 82 August 17, 2022 Page 3 of 3 
 

Attachments:  
18A – Fund 03, 05, 74, 82 Budget Reports  
18B - Resolution 2022-27 
 
 



Cameron Park Community Services District

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Unposted Transactions Included In Report

03 - Quimby

From 7/1/2022 Through 6/30/2023

Budget - Final
FY 22/23 Total 

Operating Revenue

Interest Income 4505 120.00 

Total Operating Revenue 120.00 

Expenditures

Maint. - Buildings 5345 11,950.00 

Maint. - Grounds 5355 3,500.00 

Capital Equipment Expense 5625 10,000.00 

Total Expenditures 25,450.00 

Net Revenue Over Expenditures (25,330.00)

Date: 7/29/22 06:37:39 PM Page: 1

Attachment 18A



UPDATED 2/25/2021 
 

CAL FIRE Amador-El Dorado Unit Training Fund (Fund 05)  
 
CAL FIRE generates funds due to an agreement between CAL FIRE, District, and Lake 
Tahoe Community College.  Amador-El Dorado Unit CAL FIRE employees enroll as 
students at the Community College, and the Community College pays CAL FIRE for each 
student’s instruction.  The District receives and disperses the fees on behalf of CAL FIRE 
Amador-El Dorado Unit, and receives a 10% administrative fee for managing the funds.   
 



Cameron Park Community Services District

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Unposted Transactions Included In Report

05 - Fire Training

From 7/1/2022 Through 6/30/2023

Budget - Final
FY 22/23 Total 

Operating Revenue

Tuition Fees/Revenue 4142 15,000.00 

Total Operating Revenue 15,000.00 

Expenditures

Advertising/Marketing 5209 500.00 

Agency Administration Fee 5210 1,200.00 

Clothing/Uniforms 5230 500.00 

Computer Software 5231 1,200.00 

Computer Hardware 5232 1,000.00 

Contractual Services 5235 2,000.00 

Educational Materials 5265 2,000.00 

Equipment-Minor/Small Tools 5275 10,000.00 

Fire & Safety Supplies 5285 2,000.00 

Food 5300 2,500.00 

Janitorial / HH Supplies 5315 1,000.00 

Maint. - Vehicle Supplies 5340 1,000.00 

Maint. - Buildings 5345 1,000.00 

Maint. - Equipment 5350 2,500.00 

Maint. - Vehicle 5370 1,500.00 

Medical Supplies 5375 5,000.00 

Memberships/Subscriptions 5380 2,000.00 

Miscellaneous 5395 1,374.00 

Office Supplies/Expense 5400 2,500.00 

Staff Development 5455 2,500.00 

Tuition 5486 2,500.00 

Total Expenditures 45,774.00 

Net Revenue Over Expenditures (30,774.00)

Date: 7/29/22 06:35:19 PM Page: 1



1 
 

CAL FIRE Amador-El Dorado Unit Training Fund -Fund 05  
BUDGET DETAIL 

 
ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION 
 

4400  Reimbursement  
Annual revenues from Agreement with South Lake Tahoe Community College 
 
5209   Advertising/Marketing  

Informational materials 
 
5210   Agency Admin   
Administrative fee to the District Department of Administration and Finance 

 
5230   Clothing/Uniform  
Training personnel specific items related to training. 
 

5231   Computer Software  
Miscellaneous computer software  
Fire Operations and Administration software 
4 AVL MDT Radio Mobile annual licenses   
Fire response software related to incidents: ESRI GIS License Renewal, Net Motion License, MDC Firewall 
License, MDC Maintenance  

FYI Telecommunication 
 
5232  Computer Hardware 
Ipads, keyboard, flash drive 
 

5235                   Contractual Services 
As needed 
 
5265   Educational Material  

Training Education, School/Public materials 
 
5275   Equipment – Minor/Small Tools  
Update and replacement of hand tools and mechanical tools for staff 

 
 



2 
 

5285   Fire, Safety and Training Supplies  
Supplies for teaching fire classes.    
 

5300    Food  
Provide meals for training or meetings. 
 
5315    Household Supplies  

Cleaning and Bathroom supplies for training facilities  
 
5345   Building Maintenance  
Training facility maintenance, repairs, and replacement of HVAC systems, water heaters, dishwashers, 
washing machine, oven, microwave, bay doors, refrigerators, freezers, Etc.… 
 

5350   Maintenance – Fire Equipment & Copy Machine  
Ladder replacement and annual testing per NFPA 1932, chainsaw replacement/repairs, fire hose 
replacement and repairs, thermal imaging camera, flashlights, Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus 
(SCBA) test/repair/replace, cardiac defibrillators, heart monitors, auto extrication equipment, fire 
extinguishers, gas detectors, portable equipment, and copy machine contracts.  
 
5370   Maintenance - Vehicle  
Maintenance of training personnel light trucks.  

 
5375  Medical Supplies 
Supplies for training 
 
5380   Memberships/Subscriptions  

Training Officer Assoc.  
 
5400   Office Supplies  
To provide office supplies for training facilities and offices.  

 
 
 
 



Cameron Park Community Services District

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Unposted Transactions Included In Report

74 - Summer Spectacular Special Events

From 7/1/2022 Through 6/30/2023

Budget - Final
FY 22/23 Total 

Operating Revenue

Special Events 4170 32,000.00 

Donations 4250 3,500.00 

Sponsorships 4255 21,110.00 

Total Operating Revenue 56,610.00 

Expenditures

Salaries - Perm. 5000 7,500.00 

Advertising/Marketing 5209 600.00 

Bank Charge 5221 1,500.00 

Clothing/Uniforms 5230 650.00 

Food 5300 700.00 

Janitorial / HH Supplies 5315 2,200.00 

Postage 5410 120.00 

Program Supplies 5421 12,000.00 

Rent/Lease - Equipment 5440 6,000.00 

Special Events 5465 25,340.00 

Total Expenditures 56,610.00 

Net Revenue Over Expenditures 0.00 

Date: 7/29/22 06:36:25 PM Page: 1



Cameron Park Community Services District

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Unposted Transactions Included In Report

82 - Facilities Reserve

From 7/1/2022 Through 6/30/2023

Budget - Final
FY 22/23 Total 

Expenditures

Maint. - Buildings 5345 103,947.00 

Total Expenditures 103,947.00 

Net Revenue Over Expenditures (103,947.00)

Date: 7/29/22 06:41:11 PM Page: 1



  Attachment 18B 
 

RESOLUTION No. 2022-27 
of the Board of Directors  

of the Cameron Park Community Services District 
August 17, 2022 

 
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES 

DISTRICT FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 BUDGET for FUNDS 03,05,74,82 
 

WHEREAS, the Budget & Administration Committee reviewed the proposed 
Fiscal Year 2022-23 Budget for Funds 03,05,74 & 82; and 

WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2022-23 Budget is due to the County of El Dorado by 
September 1, 2022;  

NOW THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the District adopts Attachment 15A 
attached to this resolution and made part therein as the Cameron Park Community 
Services Fiscal Year 2022-23 Budget for Funds 03,05,74 & 82. 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Cameron Park 
Community Services District at a regularly scheduled meeting held on the 17th day of 
August 2022 by the following vote of said Board: 

AYES:   

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Director Felicity Wood Carlson, President André Pichly, General Manager 
Board of Directors     Secretary to the Board 



Cameron Park Community Services District 
2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 

 
Budget and Administration Committee 

Tuesday, August 2, 2022 
6:45 p.m. 

 
Cameron Park Community Center – Social Room 

 
 

2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682 

 
HYBRID MEETING LINK FOR TEAMS 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-
join/19%3ameeting_MDViMDA3YTMtNWNhZC00NGVlLWFlM
DItNTYwZTAwNzZiNmQ1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Ti

d%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-
ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b510e640-8ba3-

421f-a075-694cad7ace01%22%7d  
 

Agenda 
 
 

Members: Chair, Felicity Wood Carlson (FC), Vice-Chair, Director Sidney Bazett (SB) 
Alternate Director Eric Aiston (EA)  

Staff:  André Pichly, General Manager; Christina Greek, Finance/HR Officer 

 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
ROLL CALL  
 
Public testimony will be received on each agenda item as it is called. Principal party on each side of an 
issue is allocated 10 minutes to speak, individual comments are limited to 3 minutes except with the 
consent of the Committee; individuals shall be allowed to speak on an item only once. Members of the 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MDViMDA3YTMtNWNhZC00NGVlLWFlMDItNTYwZTAwNzZiNmQ1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b510e640-8ba3-421f-a075-694cad7ace01%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MDViMDA3YTMtNWNhZC00NGVlLWFlMDItNTYwZTAwNzZiNmQ1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b510e640-8ba3-421f-a075-694cad7ace01%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MDViMDA3YTMtNWNhZC00NGVlLWFlMDItNTYwZTAwNzZiNmQ1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b510e640-8ba3-421f-a075-694cad7ace01%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MDViMDA3YTMtNWNhZC00NGVlLWFlMDItNTYwZTAwNzZiNmQ1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b510e640-8ba3-421f-a075-694cad7ace01%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MDViMDA3YTMtNWNhZC00NGVlLWFlMDItNTYwZTAwNzZiNmQ1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b510e640-8ba3-421f-a075-694cad7ace01%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MDViMDA3YTMtNWNhZC00NGVlLWFlMDItNTYwZTAwNzZiNmQ1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b510e640-8ba3-421f-a075-694cad7ace01%22%7d


 

Budget and Administration Committee                         Agenda   Page 2 of 2 
August 2, 2022 

 
 

audience are asked to volunteer their name before addressing the Committee.  The Committee reserves 
the right to waive said rules by a majority vote. 
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA  
 

 
OPEN FORUM  
 
Members of the public may speak on any item not on the agenda that falls within the responsibilities of 
the Committee. 
 
 
DEPARTMENT MATTERS   
 

1. FY 22/23 Fund 03, 05, 74, 82 Budgets (Various Staff) 

2. Staff Updates 

a. Check Register Review July 2022 (C. Greek) 
b. Finance & Admin Staff Report (C. Greek, oral)  

 

3. Items for Future Committee Meetings  
 

4. Items to take to the Board of Directors  
• General Obligation Bond Taxation Rate- August 8, 2022, Special Meeting 
• 2022-23 Final Budget- August 17, 2022, Regular BOD Meeting 

 
 

MATTERS TO AND FROM COMMITTEE MEMBERS & STAFF      

 
ADJOURNMENT  
 



Page 1 of 3 
 

Cameron Park Community Services District 
2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682  
   

 
Covenants, Conditions & Restrictions (CC&R) Committee  

Monday, August 1st, 2022 
5:30 p.m. 

 
 

Cameron Park Community Center – Social Room 
 

2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682 

 
HYBRID TELECONFERENCE TEAMS MEETING LINK 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-
join/19%3avcCpfcxDuLJvZjHwEPb_OET8_ZYN_TlJCR3L13O3qL01%40thr
ead.tacv2/1658958204612?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-

2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%224f4c82c7-
da83-408c-81ac-1e0e85add9b4%22%7d 

 
(Teleconference/Electronic Meeting Protocols are attached) 

 
Agenda 

 
Members: Chair, Kelly Kantola (KK) V. Chair, Director Ellie Wooten (EW) Candace Hill-Calvert (CHC),  

Tim Israel (TI), Director Eric Aiston (EA),  
Alternate: Sid Bazett 

Staff:  General Manager André Pichly, CC&R Compliance Officer Jim Mog 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER   
 
ROLL CALL 
 

Public testimony will be received on each agenda item as it is called. Principal party on each side of an 
issue is allocated 10 minutes to speak, individual comments are limited to 3 minutes except with the 
consent of the Committee; individuals shall be allowed to speak on an item only once. Members of the 
audience are asked to volunteer their name before addressing the Committee.  The Committee 
reserves the right to waive said rules by a majority vote. 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3avcCpfcxDuLJvZjHwEPb_OET8_ZYN_TlJCR3L13O3qL01%40thread.tacv2/1658958204612?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%224f4c82c7-da83-408c-81ac-1e0e85add9b4%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3avcCpfcxDuLJvZjHwEPb_OET8_ZYN_TlJCR3L13O3qL01%40thread.tacv2/1658958204612?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%224f4c82c7-da83-408c-81ac-1e0e85add9b4%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3avcCpfcxDuLJvZjHwEPb_OET8_ZYN_TlJCR3L13O3qL01%40thread.tacv2/1658958204612?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%224f4c82c7-da83-408c-81ac-1e0e85add9b4%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3avcCpfcxDuLJvZjHwEPb_OET8_ZYN_TlJCR3L13O3qL01%40thread.tacv2/1658958204612?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%224f4c82c7-da83-408c-81ac-1e0e85add9b4%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3avcCpfcxDuLJvZjHwEPb_OET8_ZYN_TlJCR3L13O3qL01%40thread.tacv2/1658958204612?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%224f4c82c7-da83-408c-81ac-1e0e85add9b4%22%7d


CC&R Committee August 1, 2022  Page 2 of 3 
 Agenda 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

 
APPROVAL OF CONFORMED AGENDA  

1.  
a. Conformed Agenda – CC&R Meeting – July 11, 2022 
 

OPEN FORUM  
 

Members of the public may speak on any item not on the agenda that falls within the responsibilities 
of the Committee. 

 
DEPARTMENT MATTERS 
 

2. Monthly Staff Report 

a. Open Violations, CC&R Violation Manager Case Detail Report (written report) 
o Total Cases Open = 37 

- Initial Notices – 5 
- Referred to Legal – 1 
- Pre-Legal Notices – 1  
- Final Notices – 5 
- Referred to Outside Agency - 3 

o Courtesy Notices – 12 
o Prior Month’s Cleared Cases – 3 
o Prior Month’s New Cases - 2 

 
b. Architectural Review Projects – Period – July 2022 

o Projects Reviewed – 11 
o Approved – 11 

 
       Summary of ARC Projects: 

o Roofs – 4 
o Solar – 1 
o Tree Removals – 0 
o Fences – 0 
o New Home Const. – 1 
o ADU/JADU – 1 
o Swimming Pool – 0 
o Exterior House Paint – 1 
o Landscape – 0 
o Deck – 0 
o Exterior Renovation – 1 
o Siding Replacement – 1 
o Detached Garage - 1 



CC&R Committee August 1, 2022  Page 3 of 3 
 Agenda 

 
       
 
 
3. Review and Provide Decision 
 

a. Pre-Legal request for: 
3380 El Dorado Royal Dr. – Cameron Park N. #1 – Improperly Stored Commercial Vehicle 
(Attachment 3a.) 

 
4. Staff Updates  
 

a. Neighborhood Campaign Update (oral, J. Mog) 
Cameron Park N. Unit 7 – CC&Rs Campaign letters sent 

 
5. Items for Future CC&R Committee Agendas  

 
6. Items to take to the Board of Directors 

 
 
MATTERS TO AND FROM COMMITTEE MEMBERS & STAFF 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 



Cameron Park Community Services District 
2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682 
 

   
  Page 1 of 2 

 
 

Fire and Emergency Services Committee 
Tuesday, August 2, 2022 

5:30 p.m. 
 

Cameron Park Community Center – Social Room 
 

2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682 

 
HYBRID TELECONFERENCE TEAMS MEETING LINK 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-
join/19%3ameeting_MjZhMTIwNTgtNTc1NC00YjYxLWFjYWQtNjVkYTMwZjYwYT
g2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-

ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b510e640-8ba3-421f-a075-
694cad7ace01%22%7d  

 

Agenda 
 
 

Members: Chair, Director Eric Aiston (EA) & Vice Chair, Director Sidney Bazett (SB) 
Alternate, Director Felicity Wood Carlson (FC) 

Staff:  General Manager André Pichly, Chief Dusty Martin 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL  

 
Public testimony will be received on each agenda item as it is called. Principal party on each side of an 
issue is allocated 10 minutes to speak, individual comments are limited to 3 minutes except with the 
consent of the Committee; individuals shall be allowed to speak on an item only once. Members of the 
audience are asked to volunteer their name before addressing the Committee.  The Committee reserves 
the right to waive said rules by a majority vote. 
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA  
 
APPROVAL OF CONFORMED AGENDA 

 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MjZhMTIwNTgtNTc1NC00YjYxLWFjYWQtNjVkYTMwZjYwYTg2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b510e640-8ba3-421f-a075-694cad7ace01%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MjZhMTIwNTgtNTc1NC00YjYxLWFjYWQtNjVkYTMwZjYwYTg2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b510e640-8ba3-421f-a075-694cad7ace01%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MjZhMTIwNTgtNTc1NC00YjYxLWFjYWQtNjVkYTMwZjYwYTg2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b510e640-8ba3-421f-a075-694cad7ace01%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MjZhMTIwNTgtNTc1NC00YjYxLWFjYWQtNjVkYTMwZjYwYTg2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b510e640-8ba3-421f-a075-694cad7ace01%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MjZhMTIwNTgtNTc1NC00YjYxLWFjYWQtNjVkYTMwZjYwYTg2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b510e640-8ba3-421f-a075-694cad7ace01%22%7d


 
Fire and Emergency Services Committee August 2, 2022 Page 2 of 2 
 Agenda 

1. Conformed Agenda – Fire & Emergency Services Committee Meeting – June 7, 2022 
 
OPEN FORUM  
 
Members of the public may speak on any item not on the agenda that falls within the responsibilities of 
the Committee. 
 
DEPARTMENT MATTERS 
 

2. General Business 
a. Building Department MOU Template (D. Martin) – Review, Discuss, and Forward to the 

Board 
b. Update regarding Advanced Life Support JPA Agreement (D. Martin) – Review, Discuss, 

and Forward to the Board 
c. Addendum to the Agreement for Mutual Aid Fire Protection (D. Martin) – Review, 

Discuss, and Forward to the Board 
d. Station 88 discussion (D. Martin) – Information only / not an action item / no staff 

report 
 

3. Staff Updates 
a. Fire Department Report – May 2022 (J. Agustin) – Information only / Not an action item 
b. Fire Department Report – July/August 2022 (J. Agustin) – Information only / Not an 

action item 
 

4. Items for Future Committee Agendas 
 

5. Items to take to the Board of Directors 

 
MATTERS TO AND FROM COMMITTEE MEMBERS & STAFF 

  
ADJOURNMENT  
 

 

 



Cameron Park Community Services District 
2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682  
 

  Page 1 of 2 
  

 
 

Parks & Recreation Committee  
Monday, August 1, 2022 

6:30 p.m. 
 

Cameron Park Community Center – Social Room 
 

2502 Country Club Drive 
Cameron Park, CA 95682 

 
HYBRID TELECONFERENCE TEAMS MEETING LINK 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-
join/19%3ameeting_MTExMTE2NWQtNmQ0NS00NTExLTlkODctNzBkYWMxMjIy

YTYz%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-
bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b510e640-8ba3-421f-a075-

694cad7ace01%22%7d  
 

Agenda 
 

Members:  Chair, Director Monique Scobey (MS), Vice-Chair, Ellie Wooten (EW) 
Alternate: Director Sidney Bazett (SB) 

 
Staff:  General Manager André Pichly, Parks & Facilities Superintendent Mike Grassle, 

Recreation Supervisor Kimberly Vickers 
 
CALL TO ORDER   

 
ROLL CALL  

Public testimony will be received on each agenda item as it is called. Principal party on each side of an 
issue is allocated 10 minutes to speak, individual comments are limited to 3 minutes except with the 
consent of the Committee; individuals shall be allowed to speak on an item only once. Members of the 
audience are asked to volunteer their name before addressing the Committee. The Committee reserves 
the right to waive said rules by a majority vote. 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MTExMTE2NWQtNmQ0NS00NTExLTlkODctNzBkYWMxMjIyYTYz%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b510e640-8ba3-421f-a075-694cad7ace01%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MTExMTE2NWQtNmQ0NS00NTExLTlkODctNzBkYWMxMjIyYTYz%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b510e640-8ba3-421f-a075-694cad7ace01%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MTExMTE2NWQtNmQ0NS00NTExLTlkODctNzBkYWMxMjIyYTYz%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b510e640-8ba3-421f-a075-694cad7ace01%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MTExMTE2NWQtNmQ0NS00NTExLTlkODctNzBkYWMxMjIyYTYz%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b510e640-8ba3-421f-a075-694cad7ace01%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MTExMTE2NWQtNmQ0NS00NTExLTlkODctNzBkYWMxMjIyYTYz%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227546519e-2cd5-4e2c-bed5-ac3d46eec8ff%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b510e640-8ba3-421f-a075-694cad7ace01%22%7d


Parks & Recreation Committee August 1, 2022 Page 2 of 2 
Agenda 

APPROVAL OF CONFORMED AGENDAS 

1. Conformed Agenda – Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting – June 6, 2022 
 

OPEN FORUM  
 
Members of the public may speak on any item not on the agenda that falls within the responsibilities of 
the Committee. 

 
DEPARTMENT MATTERS 

2. Park Entry Sign Program update  (M. Grassle) Information only / Not an Action Item 

3. 2022 Summer Spectacular final report (K. Vickers) Information only / Not an Action Item  

4. District’s Response to Drought  (M. Grassle) Information only / Not an Action Item 

5. Staff Oral & Written Updates 

a. Recreation Report (K. Vickers) Information only / Not an Action Item 

b. Parks & Facilities Report (M. Grassle) Information only / Not an Action Item 

6. Items for September & Future Committee Agendas 

a. Ordinance 2001-01, Section 5 – Conduct in Parks: staff review and return to PRC for review 

and discussion (Scobey) 

b. Memorial Bench Discussion (Scobey) 

c. Eastwood Park Improvements (Scobey) 

d. Website usage and registration software (Scobey) 

7. Items to take to the Board of Directors 

 
MATTERS TO AND FROM COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

 
ADJOURNMENT  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 


	0. 8.17.2022 BOD Agenda
	Board of Directors expresses appreciation to members of the community, District staff, or the Board for extra efforts as volunteers, committee members or community-minded citizens. 

	4. 5.18.2022 BOD regular conformed Agenda
	Board of Directors expresses appreciation to members of the community, District staff, or the Board for extra efforts as volunteers, committee members or community-minded citizens. 
	4. El Dorado Disposal  –  Organics and Rates presentation (J. England and R. Reaksecker)
	MEETING STOPPED AT 7:35 PM DUE TO TECHNICAL ISSUES INVOLING THE VIRTUAL PLATFORM BEING USED.  Jason S. Epperson, General Counsel to the District, stated that the meeting could not proceed further under current California law because the technical issues could not be resolved to allow full observance and participation by those attending remotely.  Director Wood Carlson requested a motion be made to adjourn the regular meeting.

	5. 5.18.2022 BOD special meeting conformed Agenda
	Public comment during special meetings is limited to those items agendized on the Special Meeting Agenda.  Speakers wishing to speak will have three minutes.

	5. 6.22.22 BOD Special Meeting Conformed Agenda
	6. 5.25.2022 BOD Special meeting Conformed Agenda
	Board of Directors expresses appreciation to members of the community, District staff, or the Board for extra efforts as volunteers, committee members or community-minded citizens. 

	7. 6.15.2022 BOD Special meeting Conformed Agenda
	Board of Directors expresses appreciation to members of the community, District staff, or the Board for extra efforts as volunteers, committee members or community-minded citizens. 
	4. El Dorado Disposal – Organics and Rates presentation (J. England and R. Reaksecker)
	 SB moved to a 5-minutes recess prior to the start of the presentation while slideshow is set-up

	9. 7.6.22 BOD Special Meeting Conformed Agenda
	10. General Manager's Report Pichly 8-2022
	Cameron Park
	Community Services District
	Agenda Transmittal

	11. Hybrid meeting Resolution transmittal
	Cameron Park
	Community Services District
	Agenda Transmittal

	11.a Hybrid meeting Resolution 2022-28
	12. MOU CPFD-EDCBD transmittal
	Cameron Park
	Community Services District
	Agenda Transmittal

	12.a Building Department MOU Template 4 Final(3-2022)
	12.b Resolution 2022-24 MOU CPDF - EDCBD
	13. ALS Agreement transmittal
	Cameron Park
	Community Services District
	Agenda Transmittal

	13.a Cal Fire_CP Fire ALS Agreement FY22_23
	13.b Resolution 2022-25 ALS Agreement
	14. Mutual Aid transmittal
	Cameron Park
	Community Services District
	Agenda Transmittal

	14.a Mutual Aid Fire Protection Agreement addendum
	14.b Resolution 2022-22 Mutual Aid Agreement Amendment
	16. First Responder Fee Ordinance Public Hearing transmittal
	Cameron Park
	Community Services District
	Agenda Transmittal

	16.a First Responder Fee Ordinance 2022-01 EMS Fees
	16.b First Responder Fee Resolution No. 2022-23
	17. Final Budget 22.23
	z. 7.12.22 B&A Special Meeting Agenda Packet 13
	z. 7.12.22 B&A Special Meeting Agenda Packet 14

	17a. Final Budget 22.23 with reserve transfer
	17b. Final Budget RESOLUTION 2022-26
	18. Special Funds Budget report
	Cameron Park
	Community Services District
	Agenda Transmittal

	18a. Fund 03, 05, 74, 82 Budget Reports
	15a Fund 03 Quimby
	15b1 Fund 05 Description - CALFIRE Training Fund 05 (1)
	15b2 Fund 05 Budget Detail - CAL FIRE Training Fund 05 (1)
	15b3 Fund 05 Fire Training
	15c Fund 74 Summer Spectacular
	15d Fund 82 Facilities Reserve

	18b. special funds Budget RESOLUTION- 2022-27
	19.a. 8.2.22  Budget & Admin Agenda w link
	19.b. 8.1.22 CCR Agenda
	19.c. 8.2.22  Fire & Emergency Committee Agenda-copy
	19.d. 8.1.22 Parks & Rec Agenda



